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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Director's Report 

Dear Shareholders, 

~
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31st Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Flnanclal Hlghllghts Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Total income 4680.02 3685.43 

Profit before Financial Cost, Depreciation and Tax 703.78 618.18 

Finance cost 30.99 10.72 

Profit before Depreciation and Tax 672.79 607.46 

Depreciation 249.18 59.55 

Profit before tax 423.61 547.91 

Less : Tax Expenses 

-Current tax 109.11 86.51 

-Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0 0.24 

-Deferred tax -16.63 48.37 

Profit for the year 331.13 412.79 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 2.51 -6.94 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profrt or loss -0.63 1.75 

Total other Comprehensive Income/ (-) Expense 1.88 -5.19 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 333.01 407.60 

Earnings per equity share: 
(Nominal value of equity share - Rs. 10/-) 

Basic(Rs.) 8.87 11.05 

Diluted (Rs.) 8.87 11.05 

OPERATIONAL & PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

During the year under review, the gross receipts of your Company were Rs. 4680.02 Lakhs as against gross receipts of 
Rs. 3685.43 Lakhs during the previous year and profit (after tax) was Rs. 331.13 Lakhs for the year as against net 
profit (after tax) of Rs. 412.79 Lakhs during previous year. 

DEPOSITS 
The Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit from the public during the year under review pursuant to the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profits for FY 2022-23 in the Retained Earnings. 

DIVIDEND 
With a view to conserve resources of the company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under 
review. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There was no change in the nature of business. 

STATEMENT ON SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

Your company does not have any subsidiary I associate I joint ventures within the meaning of Companies Act, 2013 
and Accounting Standards. 

DIRECTORS 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of Company, Mr. Nikhil 
Goel, (DIN: 01741446) Director, shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

As on March 31, 2023 following were the Key Managerial Personnel of Company: 

• Mr. Anurag Gupta 
• Mrs. Sapna Kansai 
• Mr. Naveen Kansai 
• Mr. Shared Goel 
• Mrs. Nikita Single 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Managing Director 
Executive Director 
Chief Executive Officer 
Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

At the 30111 Annual General Meeting of Company held on September 30, 2022, Mis Mis Jain & Anil Sood, Chartered 
Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of five years i.e. from the conclusion of 
3Qth Annual General Meeting of Company till the conclusion of 351" Annual General Meeting of Company to be held in 
the year 2027, in accordance with the provisions of section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit & 
Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Observations, if any, made in the Auditor's Report are self explanatory and do not call any explanation. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

Mr. Senjiv Kumar Goel, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed by the Board to conduct Secretarial Audit 
under provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013. The Secretarial Audit report is annexed with the Director's 
Report as Annexure - 1. There is no qualification in secretarial audit report. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in your Company. Efforts are made to optimize the 
energy cost while carrying out manufacturing operations. As required by the provisions of section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the relevant information regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo is given in the Annexure· 2 forming part of this report. 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of the Companies Act 2013. 
The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (•hereinafter referred to as Listing Regulations"). 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
The Company is committed to maintain the good standards of Corporate Govemance. The Company has complied with 
the Corporate Govemance requirements as stipulated under Listing Regulations. Pursuant to said Regulations, Report 
on Corporate Governance together with the Certificate issued by Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance 

2 



t! .. 

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ~
-r-

. ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

of Corporate Governance is annexed to this report. 

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 
(e) 

(f) 

in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed and that there are no material departures; 
the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively. 
the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequately and operating effectively. 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS u/s 143(12) 

Your company has complied with all the provisions of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, there are no 
frauds reported by the Auditors other than those which are reportable to the Central Government. Further, no fraud has 
been reported to the Central Government. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The requirement of attaching extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 has been dispensed with by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from July 31, 2018. AB per requirements, annual return (Form MGT-7) for the year 
2021-22 has been placed on the website of the company, at www.hisarspinningmills.com. Annual Return (Form MGT-7) 
for the year 2022-23 shall also be placed on the company's website in due course. 

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

During the financial year 2022-23, five Board meetings were held. The meetings were held on May 30, 2022, August 
13, 2022, September 06, 2022, November 14, 2022 and February 14, 2023. The other relevant details of Board 
meetings and the attendance of the Directors etc. is given under Corporate Governance Report annexed with Director's 
Report. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

All Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the Declaration of Independence, as required pursuant to 
section 149(7) of the Companies Act 2013 and under Listing Regulations, stating that they meet the criteria of 
independence as provided in sub-section (6). 

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

No loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been given by the Company. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business 
and were at arm's length basis. No Materially significant related party transactions have been entered by the Company 
with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. that had potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for approval. Prior 
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on yearty basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen and 
repetitive nature. The detail of transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted is placed before 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a quarterty basis. None of the Directors has any pecuniary 
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relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the company. The details of the same are given in Form AOC-2 and is annexed 
herewith. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has 
been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The said policy is uploaded on the Company's website 
www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2022-23: 
a) No. of Complaints received in the year: NIL 
b) No. of complaints disposed off during the year: NIL 
c) No. of cases pending for more than 90 days: NIL 
d) No. of workshops or awareness program against sexual harassment carried out: 1 
e) Nature of action taken by the employer: NA 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013, have been made and maintained. 

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF REPORT 

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report 
other than those disclosed in the financial statements. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company regularty maintains a proper check in normal 
course of its business regarding Risk Management. 

The Company manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to 
achieve its strategic objectives. The Company's risk management systems and programs comprises of various 
processes, structures and guidelines which assist the Company to identify, assess, monitor and manage its risks, 
including any material changes to its risk profile. To achieve this, the Company has clearly defined the responsibility 
and authority of the Company's Management to oversee and manage the Risk Management Programs. 

However, in accordance with regulation 21 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), the provisions of this 
regulation are not applicable to the company. 

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE 

SOCIAL RESPONSmILITY INITIATIVES 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said 

provisions are not applicable. 

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION AND OTHER PRESCRIBED MATTERS 

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and non-executive and independent directors to maintain 
the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and management. As of March 31, 2023, the 
Board had six members, two of whom are executive directors, one is a non executive director and three independent 
directors. One of the executive directors of the Board is a woman director. 
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The policy of the Company on directors' appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required under sub~ection (3) of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on the website of the company, at www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy of the Company. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY 

Your Company maintains an adequate and effective Internal Control system commensurate with its size and 
complexity. Internal control systems provide, among other things, a reasonable assurance that transactions are 
executed with Management authorization and that they are recorded in all material respects to permit preparation of 
financial statements in conformity with established accounting principles and that the assets of your Company are 
adequately safeguarded against significant misuse or loss. 

During the year under review, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and recommendations to 
improve the internal financial control environment. Their scope of work inter-alia indudes review of operational 
efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. In addition 
to statutory audit, the financial controls of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who 
report their findings to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal control system and suggests further strengthening the same, wherever required. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

During the year under review, there is no material order(s) passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal impacting the 
going concern status and company's operation in future. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE) RULES 2014 

The paid up listed equity share capital of the Company as at 31 81 March 2023 was Rs. 3,73,50,000/- comprising of 
37,35,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. As required under Companies (Share Cspital and Debenture) Rules 2014, 
during the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity 
shares, preference shares and employee stock options and also not made any provision for purchase of its own shares 
by employees or by trustees. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VOTING RIGHT NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY THE EMPLOYEES 

During the year under review, there is NIL disdosure as required under provisions of section 67(3) of Companies Act 
2013. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee constituted by the Company functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under the 
provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement read with provisions of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 & rules 
made thereunder and additional responsibilities assigned to it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee 
reviews the internal audit reports and findings of internal auditors along with the comments of management. The 
functions of the Audit Committee among others include approving and implementing the audit procedures, effective 
supervision of financial reporting system, WhisUe Blower Mechanism, internal control and procedures, recommending 
appointment of Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to Board and also ensuring compliances with regulatory guidelines. 
The Board has constituted the Audit Committee comprises of following: 

S.NO. NAME DESIGNATION 
1 Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Guota, Non-executive and lndeoendent Director Chairman 
2 Mr. Anura.a Guota, Manaaina Director Member 
3 Mr. Sudesh Kumar Gara, Non-executive and Independent Director Member 

The other relevant details of Audit Committee are given under Corporate Governance Report annexed with Director's 
Report. 
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VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
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The Company has a vigil mechanism named "Whistle Blower PolicyMgil Mechanism" to deal with instance of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any. The Company has adopted revised Whistle Blower Policy w.e.f. 1 at April, 2019. The details of 
the Policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also available at company's website 
www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year under review, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as 
that of its committees, individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board in compliance with the Companies Act 
2013 and Listing Regulations. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various 
aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board, its committee & members, their experience & 
competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, governance and also in accordance with Performance 
Evaluation Policy of Company. Broadly the performance of Non-Independent/Executive/Whole lime Director(s) was 
evaluated on the basis of their own performance, expertise, intelligence, their qualitative & quantitative conbibution 
towards operational achievements, organizational performance etc. The performance of Non-Executive Independent 
Directors were evaluated on the basis of their constructive participations in Board/Committee/General meetings, their 
informed & balanced decision-making, ability to monitor financial controls & systems, & certain allied parameters. The 
performance evaluation of various Board Committees constituted under Companies Act & Listing Agreement was made 
on the basis of their respective terms of reference, discharge of functions, governance etc. 

Dlsclosure of Information's as required under rule 5<1l of Companies <Appointment and Remuneration of 
Manaaerlal Personnel> Rules. 2014 

The Provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 requiring particulars of the employees in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 102 Lakhs per year to be 
disclosed in the Report of Board of Directors are not applicable to the Company as none of the employees was in 
receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 102 Lakhs during the financial year 2022-23. 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
are provided in the Annexure forming part of the Annual Report. Having regard to the provisions of Section 136(1) read 
with its relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being 
sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the 
Company during working hours and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company 
Secretary and the same will be furnished free of cost. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has affirmed that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management discussion and analysis report, as required by Listing Regulations, forms part of the Annual Report. 

CODE OF CONDUCTS 

The company has adopted the following code of Conducts/ policies w.e.f April 1, 2019: 
1. Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designated Persons as per the SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading (Amendment)) Regulations, 2018. 
2. Code of Practices and Procedures for fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 
3. Policy and Procedure for Enquiry in case of leak/ suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all of the Company's employees for their enormous efforts as well as 
their collective contribution to the Company's performance. The Directors would also like to thank shareholders, 
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customers, dealers, suppliers, Financial Institutions, bankers, Government and all the other business associates for the 
continuous support given by them to the Company and their confidence in its management. 

Place: Chandigarh 
Dated: September 06, 2023 

FORM NO. AOC.2 

By order of the Board of Directors 

Sd/ 
(Mlthlesh Kumar Gupta) 

Chairman 
DIN • 07692870 

Form for dlsclosure of partlculars of contracts/arrangements entered Into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 
transactions under third proviso thervto (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub4ection (3)of section 134 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companiee (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

1.Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis 

(a)Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL 
(b)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NIL 
(c)Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: NIL 
(d)Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NIL 
(e)Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NIL 
(f)date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL 
(g)Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 
(h)Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: 

NIL 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis 

(a)Name(s) of the related party and Mr. Naveen Kansai -
nature of relationship: Husband of Mrs. Sapna 

Kansai, Whole Time 
Director. 

(b)Nature of contracts/ Employment 
arrangements/ transactions: 

(c) Duration of the contracts/ Permanent employment 
arrangements/ transactions: 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or General terms of 
arrangements or transactions employment as applicable 
including the value, if any: on other employees. 

(e)Date(s) of approval by the Board, 29.12.2016 
if any: 

(f)Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 

Place: Chandigarh 
Dated: September 08, 2023 
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Usha Yarns Limited - Common 
Managing Director and two relatives of 
Executive Directors are Directors in 
Usha Yarns Limited and common 
promoter shareholders 

Purchase, sale & supply of goods 

Annual 

Purchase, sale & supply of goods at 
market value 

Omnibus Approval on 14.02.2023 

Nil 

By order of the Board of Directors 

Sd/ 
(Mithlesh Kumar Gupta) 

Chairman 
DIN - 07692870 
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Corporate Govamanca Report 

1. Company's phllosophy on code of Govemance 

~
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Corporate Governance is a set of system, process and principles which ensure that a Company is governed in the best 
interest of all stakeholders. The objective of Good Corporate Governance is to ensure the Board's commitment towards 
transparent management to maximize long term value for the Company's shareholders of all stakeholders. We believe 
that good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management practices and 
compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to the highest standards of transparency and business ethics. 

2. Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors so as 
to have a balanced structure. As on 31at March 2023, the Board of Directors consists of six Directors, out of which two 
are Promoter Directors (Managing Director and a non executive Director), one Executive Woman Director and three 
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. None of the Directors on the board is a member on more than 10 
committees and Chairman of more than 5 committees as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (•hereinafter referred to as Listing Regulations•), across all the companies in which 
they are Directors. The necessary disclosures regarding committee memberships have been made by all the Directors. 
The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149 of Companies 
Act 2013 and rules made there under and meet with requirements of Listing Regulations. 

During the financial year 2022-23, five Board meetings were held. The meetings were held on May 30, 2022, August 
13, 2022, September 06, 2022, November 14, 2022 and February 14, 2023. As stipulated by Code of Independent 
Directors under Companies Act. 2013 and under Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of independent directors was 
held on February 14, 2023 to review the performance of Non-Independent directors including the Chairman and the 
Boards as a whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of follow of information 
between Management and the Board. All Independent Directors were present in the said meeting. 

The names and categories of Directors on the board, their attendance at Board Meetings during the year and at the last 
Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships/ Committee memberships/ Chairmanship held by them in 
other Companies are given below: 

No. of Directorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship as on 31.03.2023:-

Namaof Category Attandanca No. of Directorship No. of Membership/ Names of 
Director Partlculars Chalmanshlp In other llstac:I 

Committees* entitles 

Board Last Members Chainnan Member Chainnan 
wheretha 

Meeting AGM hip ship ship ship 
person Isa 
director and 
the category 

of 
directorship 

Mrs. Sapna ED 5 Yes 1 Nil 1 Nil Nil 
Kansai 

Mr.Anurag ED/MD 5 Yes 1 Nil 1 Nil Nil 
Gupta 

Mr. Mithlesh INED 5 Yes 1 1 2 1 Nil 
Kumar Gupta 

Mr. Sudesh INED 5 Yes 1 Nil 1 Nil Nil 
Kumar Garg 

Mr. Sandeep INED 5 Yes 1 Nil NIL NIL Nil 
Suri 

8 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Nameof Category Attendance 
Dil'9ctor Particulars 

Mr. Nikhil Goel NED 5 I Yes 

INED: Independent Non Executive Director 
NED : Non Executive Director 
MD : Managing Director (Executive) 
ED : Executive Director 

No. of Dil'9ctorship 

1 I Nil 

No. of Membership/ 
Chairmanship in 

Committees• 

1 I 1 

Namesof 
other listed 

entities 

Nil 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

-The committees considered for the above purpose are Audit Committee and stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

3. INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD 

The Board has complete access to all information about the Company. All the meetings are conducted as per well 
designed and structured agenda. All the agenda items are backed by necessary supporting information including 
minimum information as stipulated under Regulation 17(7) of Listing Regulations to the extent it is applicable & relevant 
and documents to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of the meetings of all the 
Board Committees for the information of Board. The Board reviews the declarations/reports made by the Management 
regarding compliance with applicable laws on quarterly basis as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify 
instances of non-compliances, if any. Post meetings, all important decisions taken at the meeting are communicated to 
the concerned officials and departments. 

4. MAXIMUM DIRECTORSHIP & TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act 2013. The Company has 
issued formal letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors. At the time of appointment I re-appointment of an 
independent director, it was ensured that the number of Boards on which such independent director serves is restricted 
to seven listed companies as an independent director and three listed companies as an independent director in case 
such person is serving as a whole-time (executive) director of a listed company. The terms & conditions of appointment 
of independent directors are available on Companys website viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

5. Code of Conduct 

The Company is committed to conduct its business in accordance with the pertinent laws, rules and regulations and 
with the highest standards of business ethics. The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members 
and Senior Management of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on Companys website viz. 
www.hisarspinningmills.com. All Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with 
the Code. A declaration signed by Sh. Anurag Gupta, DIN 00192888, Managing Director of the Company to this effect 
is enclosed at the end of this report. 

6. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE 

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading. The Code is applicable to Promoters and Promoter's Group, all Directors, KMP's and 
such Designated Employees etc. who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating 
to Company. The Code lays down guidelines advising them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made 
while dealing with the shares of Company and cautioning them about the consequences of violations. The Company 
Secretary is responsible for implementation of this code. During the year under review, there has been due compliance 
with the said code. The Company has also formulated a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and policy and procedure for inquiry in case of leak I suspected leak of un­
published Price Sensitive Information, in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended. The same is also posted on Companys website viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

7. MD and CFO Certification 

As per Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, Sh. Sharad Goel, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) & Sh. Anurag Gupta, DIN 
00192888, Managing Director of the Company have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Listing Regulations 
certifying that the financial statements and the cash flow statement do not contain any materially untrue statement and 
these statements represent a true and fair view of the Companys affairs. The said certificate is attached herewith and 
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forms part of the Annual Report. 

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

The Board of Directors have constituted various Board Committees in compliance of Companies Act as well as Listing 
Regulations/Listing Agreement to deal with specific areas and activities as stipulated under the Companies Act and 
Listing Obligations. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals, takes necessary steps to perform its 
duties/functions entrusted by the Board. 

(A) Audit Committee 

Audit Committee functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under Listing Regulations read with 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made there under and additional responsibilities 
assigned to it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee reviews the internal audit reports and findings of 
internal auditors along with the comments of management. The functions of the Audit Committee among others include 
approving and implementing the audit procedures, effective supervision of financial reporting system, Whistle Blower 
Mechanism, internal control and procedures, recommending appointment of statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to Board 
and also ensuring compliances with regulatory guidelines. The composition, names of members, chairperson, 
particulars of the meetings and attendance of the members during the financial year are as below: 

During the financial year 2022-23, four Audit Committee meetings were held on May 30, 2022, August 13, 2022, 
November 14, 2022 and February 14, 2023. 

S.NO. NAME DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS 
ATTENDED DURING 
THE YEAR 2022-2023 

1. Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta, Non-executive and Independent Chairman 4 
Director 

2. Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg, Non-executive and Independent Member 4 
Director 

3. Mr. Anuraa GuDta Manaaina Director Member 4 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors were invitees to the meetings. The Company Secretary acts as secretary 
to the Audit Committee. 

(B). Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under 
Listing Regulations read with provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 & rules made there under. The 
functions of Nomination and Remuneration Committee include formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to 
remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors and the board of directors, devising a policy on diversity of board of directors, 
identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal etc. During 
the financial year 2022-2023, one meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on September 06, 
2022. 

S.NO. NAME DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS 
ATTENDED DURING THE 
YEAR 2022-2023 

1 Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg, Non Executive Chairman 1 
lndeDendent Director 

2 Mr. Nikhil Goel, Non Executive Non Independent Member 1 
Director 

3 Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta, Non Executive Member 1 
lndeDendent Director 
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Remuneration Policy 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
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The objective of this Policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and 
retain talent. The Company has adopted and implemented the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
on the requirement of the Committee to recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, 
KMPs and other employees. 

I) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 

No remuneration was paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the year 2022-23. 

II) Remuneration of Executive Directors 

The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year 2022-23 are given below: 

(Rs. In Lakhal 

Name of Directors Salary Perquiaitae* Commission Total 

Mr. Anurag Gupta, 27.00 - - 27.00 
Managing Director 

Mrs. Sapna Kansai 27.00 - - 27.00 

There is no Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) in the Company as on March 31, 2023. Further, there are no 
pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executive Director vis-a vis the Company which has potential conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large. 

(C). Stakeholders Relatlonshlp Committee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out under 
provisions of Listing Regulations read with provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made there 
under i.e. redressing of Shareholders/Investors complaints, regarding to share transfers, non-receipt of balance 
sheet/dividend by the shareholders etc. During the financial year 2022-23, one Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
meeting was held on February 14, 2023. The composition, names of the members, chairperson, particulars of the 
meetings and attendance of the members during the year are as below: 

S.NO NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS ATIENDED 
DURING THE YEAR 2022·2023 

1. Mrs. Sapna Kansai, Non Executive Director Member 1 

2. Mr. Nikhil Goel, Non-executive Director Chairman 1 

3. Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta, Non Executive Member 1 
Independent Director 

During the financial year, the requests for transfer/ demat I remat of shares, change of address etc have been duly 
effected. During the year, no complaint from any of the shareholders was received and no grievance was pending at 
the end of the financial year. 

Detalls of the Compllance Officer of the Company for SEBI/ Stock Exchange/ROC related Issues etc. 

Mrs. Nikita Single 

(D). Risk Management Committee: 

The Listing Regulations in this respect are not applicable to the company. 
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9. General Body Meetings 

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:-

YEAR VENUE DATE TIME 

2021-22 9111 KM stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, 30/09/2022 11.00A.M. 
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar) 

2020-21 9111 KM stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, 30/09/2021 10.00A.M. 
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar) 

2019-20 9111 KM stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, 30/09/2020 10.00A.M. 
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar) 

WHETHER ANY SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION PASSED 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

No Postal ballots were used for voting in these meetings. At the forthcoming AGM, there is no item on the agenda that 
needs approval by Postal ballots. 

10. Subsidiary Company 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, neither the Company has any subsidiary nor any material listed I unlisted 
subsidiary company. 

11. Risk Management Polley 

The Company's Risk Management Policy is available at company's website www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

12. Dlsclosures 

a) Related Partv Transactions 

All related party transactions of the Company are dealt with in accordance with Related Party Transactions Policy of 
Company and as per provisions of section 188 of Companies Act 2013 & rules made there under and as per Listing 
Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for approval by 
specifying the nature, value, tenns and conditions of the transactions etc. Omnibus approval is obtained for the 
transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all related party transactions for which omnibus 
approval has obtained are presented before the Audit Committee as well as to Board on quarterly basis. Although all 
related party transactions are entered in ordinary course of business and at ann's length basis. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the Company with its promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, 
their relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

Suitable disclosures as required by the Ind AS 24 are disclosed in Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report. The Related 
Party Transactions Policy of Company available on the Company's website: www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements 

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting standards referred to in Section 133 of Companies Act. 2013 & rules 
made there under and laid down by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, while preparing Financial statements. 

c) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity. penalties. strictures imoosed by stock exchange<s> or the board or any 
statutorv authority. on any matter related to capital markets. during the last three years 

During the last three years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or the stock Exchanges or any 
statutory Authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets. 

d) Whistle Blower PolicvMgil Mechanism 

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary mechanism for employees to 
report concems about unethical behavior. This policy is reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee to check the 
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effectiveness of the policy & related matters. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 
relevant details of Whistle Blower Policy are given under the Director's Report and same is available on the Companys 
website: www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

e) Details of compliance with mandatorv requirements and adoption of the non-mandatorv requirements 
The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements. The Company has not adopted non­
mandatory requirements. 

f) Subsidiary Comcanv 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, neither the Company has any subsidiary nor any material listed/unlisted 
subsidiary company. 

g) Independent Director's Declarations 

All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of 'Independence' as stipulated under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

h) Disclosures bv Senior Management & Key Managerial Personnel 

Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel have made disclosure to the Board relating to all material, financial 
and other transactions stating that they did not have any personal interest that could result in a conflict with the interest 
of the Company at large. The material, financial and commercial transactions where Key Managerial Personnel have 
personal interest forms part of the disclosure on related parties referred to in Notes to Annual Accounts. 

13. Perfonnance evaluation of Board of Directors 

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and effectiveness as well as 
that of its Committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. For Board and its Committees, the 
exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Boards functioning 
such as composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & 
obligations, governance issues etc. The Performance evaluation of Non-Independent directors including the Chairman 
was carried out by Independent Directors in their separate meeting. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation 
results, which reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness of the Board and its Committees. The necessary 
details regarding criteria of performance evaluation is mentioned under Director's Report. The Performance Evaluation 
Policy of Board of Directors is available on Companys website viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

Since the Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, there were no observations in the board evaluation 
carried out for the year, hence no action was proposed. The previous year's observations in the board evaluation were 
nil and hence no action was warranted. 

14. Famlllarlzatlon Programme/ Induction for Independent Directors 

At the Board Meetings, apart from the regular agenda items, it is ensured that the Board members are provided a deep 
and thorough insight into the business model of the Company and updates either by way of presentation of business 
units or otherwise. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their experience. At the time of 
appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him/her, which inter alia explains the role, 
function, duties, responsibilities expected of him/her as a Director of the Company and expected time commitments. As 
required under Listing Regulations, Company has conducted a familiarization programme for its independent directors 
under which the necessary information was provided to familiarize them with the nature, activities, and products of the 
Company and also about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company. The details of familiarization programme 
imparted to Independent Directors is provided on the website of the Company at www.hisarspinningmills.com. 

15. Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board of Directors 

Core skills /expertise/ competencies identified by the board of directors as required in the context of its business(es) 
and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually available with the board along with the Directors who 

ssess such skills I e ertise/ com ncies is as follows: 
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of the product 
Mr. Anuraa Gupta 10 10 
Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta 8 8 
Mr. SandeeD Suri 8 6 
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg 8 6 
Mr. Nikhil Goel 9 9 
Mrs. Sapna Kansai 10 10 

The above points are allotted to the directors out of 10 basis points. 

16. Confirmation of Independence of Independent Directors 

10 
7 
7 
7 
9 
10 

staff 
10 
8 
8 
8 
9 
10 

10 
8 
8 
8 
10 
10 

~
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The Board of Directors has confirmed that in their opinion, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the 
management. 

17. Resignation of Independent Director(•) 

No Independent Director resigned from the Board of the Company during the year under review. 

18. Board Diversity Polley 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee have formulated Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the Listing 
Regulations. Under the said policy, it is recognized that a Board composed of appropriately qualified people with broad 
range of experience relevant to the business of the Company is important to achieve effective corporate governance 
and sustained commercial success of the Company. In order to ensure that the Company's boardroom has appropriate 
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are imperative for the execution of its business strategy, 
the Company shall while selecting the Board Members consider a number of factors, including but not limited to age, 
culture, functional skills, industry/professional experience, financial literate and integrity etc .. The ultimate decision will 
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. 

19. Means of Communications 

The quarterly, half yearly & annual financial results, notices etc. are published in widely circulating national & local daily 
newspapers, THE PIONEER in English edition, VYAPAR BHARATI and DAINIK ARTHPRAKASH in Hindi Edition. The 
same are also being posted on the website of BSE www.bseindia.com under Scrip Code 521068 and also on the 
website of the company. 

20. General Shareholder information 

Annual General Meeting at 11 :00 Hrs. on September 30, 2023 at Registered Office of the Company at 9t11 KM Stone, 
Hisar Bhiwani road, V.P.O Debra (Hisar). 

Financial Calendar 

Date of Book Closure 

Dividend Payment Date 
Listing on Stock Exchange 
Scrip Code 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 
CDSL ISIN No. 

: April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 

: 26.09.2023 to 30.09.2023 
(both days inclusive) 
: N.A. 
: Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 
: 521068 
: L 17112HR1992PLC031621 
: INE689E01014 

Annual listing fee for the year 2022-2023 has duly been paid to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 
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Market price data - High and Low during each month on BSE in the financial year 2022-23. Stock code - 521068 
'Source: www.bseindia.com\ 
Month High 

April, 2022 47.00 
May, 2022 38.00 
June, 2022 41.50 
July, 2022 37.50 
August, 2022 34.15 
September, 2022 55.30 
October, 2022 61.45 
November, 2022 82.35 
December, 2022 86.45 
January, 2023 74.95 
February, 2023 57.5 
March, 2023 48.25 
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Share Transfer System 

Compliance Officer 
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Low BSE 
36.10 57060.87 

32.65 55566.41 

34.25 53018.94 

30.90 57570.25 

28.15 59537.07 

35.85 57426.92 

53.00 60746.59 

52.55 63099.65 

67.05 60840.74 

54.5 59549.9 

46.15 58962.12 

40.62 58991.52 
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M/s Indus Portfolio Private limited 
G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-110015 

Shares lodged in physical form with the RTA direcUy 
or through Company, are processed and returned, 
duly transferred, within time stipulated by SEBI I BSE, 
except in cases which are under objection. 

In respect of shares held in dematerialised mode, the 
transfer takes place instantaneously between the 
transferor, transferee and the Depository Participant 
through electronic debit/credit of the accounts involved. 

Mrs. Nikita Singla 

hsml2000@rediffmeil.oom 
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Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023. 

Range of Shares No.of % of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Shareholdlng 
Shareholders 

0-500 9679 97.50 1403830 37.58 

501-1000 140 1.41 111600 2.99 

1001-5000 68 0.68 138200 3.70 

5001-10000 10 0.10 74300 1.99 

10001-50000 16 0.16 373580 10.00 

50001-100000 8 0.08 534000 14.30 

Above 100000 7 0.07 1099490 29.44 

9928 100.00 3735000 100.00 

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2023. 

Category No. of shares Percentage 

Promoters/Promoter Group 1884870 50.47 

Fl's/Fll's/ Banks/ Mutual Funds - -
Indian Public 1850130 49.53 

others - -
Shares held by Custodian & against which - . 
Depository Receipts have been issued 

Total 3735000 100 

Details of shareholding of Directors in the Company as on March 31, 2023. 

Name of Director 

NIKHILGOEL 

ANURAG GUPTA 

SAPNA KANSAL 

Dematerialisation of shares 

Plant(s) Location 

Address for correspondence 

E-mail ID's 

Credit Ratings 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

No. of shares held 

23,16,470 (62.02%) shares 

gth K.M. Stone, Hiser Bhiwani Road, 
V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125005 
Hisar Spinning Mills limited 
gth K.M. Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, 
V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125005 

160400 

184250 

63100 

Ph. 01662-297005 Fax: 91-1662-297005 
hsml2000@rediffmail.com 

Not Applicable. 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

a) Dlsclosuras on materlally significant related party transactions that may have potentlal conflict with the 
Interests of llsted entity at large 
There is no such related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests of the listed entity at 
large. 
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b) Detalls of non-compllance by the Hated entity, penaltles, strictures Imposed on the Hated entity by stock 
exchange (s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capltal markets, during last 
three years 
No major penalty was levied on the company by any statutory authority. 

c) Detalls of establlshment of vlgll mechanism, whlstle blower pollcy and afflnnatlon that no personnel was 
denied accesa to the Audn Committee 
The company has revised the vigil mechanism I whistle blower policy and the same is also disclosed on the 
website of the company at www.hisarspinningmills.com and displayed at the conspicuous place in the company. 
Further, we hereby affirm that no personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee. 

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements 
All the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements have been duly complied with by the company to the extent 
applicable to the company. 

e) Web link where policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is disclosed 
The company does not have any subsidiary I associate I joint ventures within the meaning of Companies Act, 2013 
and Accounting standards. 

f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions 
www.hisarsoinningmills.com. 

g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities 
At present there is no commodity price risk in the company. 

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as 
specified under Ragulatlon 32 (7 A). 
Not applicable 

(I) A certificate from a practicing company secretary that none of the directors on the board of the company 
have been debarred or dlsquallfled from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority Is appended hereunder: 

CERTIFICATE OF NQN.QISQUALIFICAJION OF DIRECJORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of 
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited 
(CIN: L17112HR1992PLC031621) 
Regd. Office: Village & PO. Dabra, 
Hisar. Haryana -125005 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Hisar 
Spinning Mills Limited having CIN: L 17112HR1992PLC031621 and having registered office at Village & PO. Dabra, 
Hisar. Haryana - 125005 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) 
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications {including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority. 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment In Company 

1 Anurag Gupta 00192888 2810212000 
2 Sapna Kansai 06892410 20/0612014 
3 Nikhil Goel 01741446 29/1212016 
4 Sudesh Kumar Garg 07692820 29/1212016 
5 Mithlesh Kumar Gupta 07692870 29/1212016 
6 Sandeep Suri 07693480 29/1212016 
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment I continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express en opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: August 14, 2023 

Signature: Sd/-
Name: Sanjiv Kumar Goel 
Membership No.: FCS 2107 
CP No.: 1248 
UDIN No: F002107E000800071 
PR No.: 873/2020 

0) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily 
required, in the relevant financial year: 
There was no such instance during the financial year under review. 

(k) The total fees for all services paid by the llsted entity and Its subsidiaries, on a consolldated basis, to the 
statutory auditor and all entitles In the network ftnn/natwork entity of which the statutory auditor Is a part: 

Mis Jain & Anil Sood, Chartered Accountants, were paid a total sum of Rs. 3.50 Lakhs (excluding taxes) during the 
financial year under review. 

(I) Dlsclosures In relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013: 
a. number of complaints tiled during the financial year: Nil 
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil 
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT I UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

No physical shares are lying as undelivered I unclaimed. 

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

As provided under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, it is hereby declared that 
all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have aflinned compliance with the Code of Conduct as 
adopted by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

Place: Chandigarh 
Dated: September 06, 2023 
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MD AND CFO CERTIFICATION 
To 
The Board of Directors 
Hisar Spinning Milla Limited 

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Hisar Spinning Mills 
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we 
state that; 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transadions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's code of 
conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls. 

{d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

(i) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(ii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

Yours sincerely, 

Sd/-
{Anurag Gupta) 

Managing Director 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: September 06, 2023 
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CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE AS PER REGULATION E of SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI <LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS> REGULATIONS 2015. 

To the Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited 

I have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Hisar Spinning Mills Limited, Hisar 
(Haryana) for the year ended March 31, 2023 as stipulated in Regulation E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's Management. My 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial 
statements of the company. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, and the information 
given by the management, I certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above mentioned regulations. 

I state that in respect of investor grievance received during the year ended March, 31, 2023, no investor grievances 
were pending against the Company, as per the records maintained by the Company and presented to the 
Investors/Shareholders Grievance Committee. 

I further state that compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: August 14, 2023 
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ANNEXURE 11' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 
To, 

The Members, 
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited 
9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, 
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar), Haryana-125005 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called '1he company"). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliance 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Hisar Spinning Mills Limited's books, papers, minutes books , forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion , 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance -
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

1. I have examined the books, papers minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Hisar 
Spinning Mills Limited for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of 

i) The companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under; 
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed there under; 
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (SEBIAct):-

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) 
Regulations, 2011; 

(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(e)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(f}The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

2. I have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for systems and mechanism put in place by 
the company for compliances under the applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 
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3. I have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the followings: 
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, effective from July 01, 

2015. 
ii) The erstwhile Listing Agreement entered into by the company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015 notified w.e.f. December 01, 2015. 

~
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._. ~ 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non - Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of 
the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, suits, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: August 14, 2023 
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Annaxure '2' to Directors' Report 

~
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Information as per section 217(1)(e) read with companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Directors) Rules 
1988 and forming part of the Director's Report for the period ended 31st March, 2023. 

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

a) Energy conservation measures taken: 

The Company has been giving high priority to conservation of energy by close monitoring of energy consuming 
equipments. All efforts are made for installing energy saving devices wherever required. 

b) Additional investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy: 

New equipments, whenever required, are purchased from time to time. 

c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent 
impact on the cost of production of goods: 

The measures taken to conserve energy resulted in more production. However, there was no savings in consumption 
due to increased production and increase in rates of power. 

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption par unit of production as per Form-A of the annexure to 
the rules In respect of Industries specified In the schedule thereto: 

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR 
Al Power and Fuel consumntlon 
a) Purchased Unit (KW) 6210675 5014805 

Total Amount (Rs. In Lakhs) 461.63 380.63 
Rate/Unit (Rs) 7.43 7.59 

b) Through Diesel Generator 
UnitsCKW) 516885 606600 
Total Amount (Rs. In Lakhs) 184.12 198.63 

Rate/Unit (Rs/KW) 35.62 32.75 

B) Consumption Per Unit Of 1803 Units 1839 Units 
Production 

Steam Coal Nil Nil 

Furnace Oil Nil Nil 
Others/Internal Generators Nil Nil 
Cotton Yam Production In MT 3731.443 3056.564 

Total Units Consumed 6727560 5621405 

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Efforts made In technology absorption as per Form·B of the Annexure to the Rules. 

1) Research & Development (R & D) 

a) Specific area in which R & D carried by the Company: Nil 

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D: Nil 
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c) Future plan of Action: NII 

d) Expenditure on R & D 

Capital 

Revenue 

Total 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of Total Turnover= NIL 

2) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION 

a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: Nil 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e. g. product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development, import substitution etc: NII 

c) In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 year reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year) - Nil 

3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

II. Activities relating to export, initiatives taken to increase export, development of new export markets for 
products and services and export plans: NII 

Value of imports calculated on C.l.F. basis: 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Partlculars For 1he Year ended 31.03.2023 
stores & Spares Darts 47.17 
Capital Goods NIL 

Total 47.17 

Expenditure In foreign currency during the ftnanclal year on account: 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Partlculars For the Year endac:I 31.03.2023 
Commission on sales 6.31 

Total 6.31 

Earnings In foreign exchange: 
Export of goods calculated on FOB basis 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Partlculars For the Year ended 31.03.2023 
Manufactured Goods 578.97 

Total 578.97 

By order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Chandigarh 
Dated: September 06, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Economy 

Global 

~
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._. ~ 

The global economy is still marred by profound shocks and unprecedented uncertainty. Mixed signals are emanating 
from the geopolitical situation and financial market volatility. Just as the COVID-19 pandemic was receding, the war in 
Ukraine overwhelmed the world and fundamentally altered the global economic outlook. Surges in food and energy 
prices and shortages in key staples have severely affected the poorer sections across the world. Though international 
food, energy and other commodity prices have eased moderately in recent times, inflation remains high and broad­
based. 

Ind la 

In this hostile international environment, the Indian economy remains resilient, drawing strength from its 
macroeconomic fundamentals. Our financial system remains robust and stable. Banks and corporates are heaHhier 
than before the crisis. India is widely seen as a bright spot in an otherwise gloomy world. Yet, our inflation remains 
elevated, as in most parts of the world. 

Textile Industry 

Global 

The Russia-Ukraine war impacted the pace of the global market recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. The war has 
led to economic sanctions on multiple countries, a surge in commodity prices and supply chain disruptions, causing 
inflation across goods and services affecting many markets across the globe. However, the global textile market grew 
from $573.22 billion in 2022 to $610.91 billion in 2023 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 6.6%. 

Ind la 

Empowered with the abundant availabilities of raw material, India also has a large pool of manpower which is 
advantageous since textile and apparel is a labour-intensive sector. The Indian Textile and apparel manufacturing is 
second largest in the world that spans the entire value chain from fibre to finished goods. All these factors promoted 
India as one of the leading manufactures and a sourcing hub. The enthusiasm in the textile industry on account of the 
latest FT As is expected to move beyond enhanced market access and trade. 

There appears to be plenty of opportunities for the Indian yam arising globally as the majority of Companies and 
Customers are looking for market diversification and explicitly, India is the most favoured destination. The Country has 
the potential to grab the emerging demands and markets by making investments in sustainability, circularity and 
traceability, supported by the concluded I yet to be concluded FTAs. 

The majority of cotton yam produced across the globe is used to manufacture apparels. Currently, consumers and 
brands are promoting sustainable fashion like never before, and clothing made using cotton yarn is an excellent choice 
for sustainability. High cotton yam price was compounded by a rise in cotton prices. Challenges such as the Russia -
Ukraine war have further contributed to the price rise. However, the prices of cotton are returning to nonnalization as 
the supply chain is getting back on track. This in tum is expected to nonnalize the industry in the next few years. 
Nowadays, key fashion houses and retailers have started to progressively incorporate cotton into the supply chains 
resulting in a significant increase in the product demand. This is anticipated to benefit and create new opportunities for 
the cotton yam market growth. Thus, rising demand from the global textile Industry is likely to drive its market growth. 
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FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY 
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Blended yam products are the most preferred in the textile industry due to its unique features like lower price and 
availability at almost uniform price throughout the year. The future of the Company looks promising. Empowered by the 
significant advantages in availability of raw material and labour. We are capitalizing the opportunity to increase its share 
in textiles trade with a quantum leap, rather than the incremental gains that it achieved in the past. 

We are focused on promoting technology upgradation, skill development to manufacture good quality product. These 
initiatives are likely to create a positive environment for future growth. We are equipped with the hi-tech integrated 
facilities, enthused work force, progressive business model and empowered by loyal customer base and drive for 
enhancing value for all stakeholders, We remains optimistic about healthy growth and prosperity in the coming years 
also. 

THE COMPANY 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

A strong internal control is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a well established framework of internal 
control in all areas of its operations, including suitable monitoring procedures, competent and qualified personnel. The 
Internal Audit department also assesses the opportunities for improvement in business processes, systems and 
controls, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the Company. In addition to statutory audit, the financial 
controls of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who report their findings to the Audit 
Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control 
system and suggests furthering strengthening the same, if so required. The Committee meets to review the progress of 
the internal audit initiatives, significant audit observations, planning and implementation of follow up action required. 
The Company conducts its business with integrity and high standard of ethical behavior and in compliance with the 
applicable laws and regulations that govern its business. 

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACES 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment at Workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Management of the Company has also constituted an Internal 
Complaints Committee at its workplaces to consider and redress the complaints of Sexual Harassment. During the year 
under review, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment. 

RISKS & CONCERNS 

Business risks exist for every Company having national and international exposure. Your Company also faces some 
such risks, the key ones are unfavorable raw material price, financial & liquidity & unexpected changes in regulatory 
framework. To ensure long-term success, it is therefore essential that risks be effectively identified, analyzed and then 
mitigated by means of appropriate control measures. 

We have a comprehensive risk management system/policy in place, which enables us to assess, mitigate and to 
monitor the different risks exposed to the industry in which the Company operates and to take the appropriate action, 
where ever required. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES 

The Company has health and workplace safety programs in place and has established policies and procedures aimed 
at ensuring compliance with applicable laws/legislative requirements. The Company believes that the health and safety 
of the workers and the persons residing in the vicinity of its plants is fundamental to the business. Commitment to the 
identification and elimination or control of the workplace hazards for protection of all is ubnost importance. 
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
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The permanent employee strength of Company as on March 31, 2023 was Ninety Five. The Company recognizes the 
importance and contribution of its human resources for its growth and development and is committed to the 
development of its people. The Company has been adopting methods and practices for Human Resources 
development. With utmost respect to human values, the Company continues to develop its human resources, through 
appropriate trainings, workshops, motivationneadership techniques and employee welfare activities at regular intervals. 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Particulars FY2022-23 FY2021-22* ExDlanation for Sianificant Chanae 
Debtors Turnover (times) 13.83 12.81 
lnventorv Turnover (times) 4.27 3.72 
Interest Coverage Ratio (times) 20.23 65.10 Scheduled repayment of interest on non -

current borrowings has increased during 
the current financial year as compared to 
previous financial year which has resulted 
in decrease in Interest service coverage 
ratio. 

Cu1T8nt Ratio 4.56 2.53 
Debt Equity Ratio 0.15 0.27 Total Debt has reduced due to repayment 

of borrowings during the year which has 
resulted in improvement of debt - equity 
ratio. 

Operating Profit Marain (%) 12.63% 15.42% 
Net Profit Margin(%) 7.29% 11.89% Net profits after taxes has reduced during 

the current year, resulting in decrease in 
net profit ratio. 

Return on Net Worth (%) 16.36% 24.41% Reduced earnings, leading to 
deterioration in ratio. 

* The above key financial ratios have been re-aligned with Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 

Detalled explanatlon: 

Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group which 
hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the listed entity, in the format prescribed in the relevant accounting standards for 
annual results. : NA 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

statements in the Board's Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's objectives, 
expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 
Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the 
Company's operations include global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices of finished 
goods, input availability and yam prices in the domestic and overseas markets, changes in government regulations, tax 
laws and economic developments. 

Place: Chandigarh 
Dated: September 06, 2023 
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JAIN & ANIL SOOD 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

s.c.o 12, Basement, 
Feroze Gandhi Market. 
lU DHIANA - 141001 
Tel. : (O} 2773027, 4361749 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hisar Spinning Mills limited ("the Company"), 
wh[ch comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information . 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acr) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view i11 conformity wHh the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Seclion 133 of the Act read wHh the Companies (Indian Accounting Slandards) Rules, 2015. as amended. 
(~Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aftairs of the Company 
as at 31st Marcil. 2023, its profi1 including other comprehensive income. changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs} 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditors Responsibi/ifies for tf1e Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
indepefldent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ~111stitute of Chartered 
Accountants of India {ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial slateme11ts under the provisio11s of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su'ticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit mailers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements for the fmancial year ended 31st March. 2023. We have determined that there are 
no k:ey audit matters to com11wn1cate in our report. 
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Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible far the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. The Company's Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any . 
form of as-surance conclusion thereon. 

In canilection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or othernise 
.app€ars to be materially misstated 

When we read the Company's Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to commuilicate the matter to the Company's Board of Directors and those charged with 
governance and describe actions applicable under the applicable laws and regulations. 

Management's Res,ponsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Boa.rd of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amerided. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting irecords in accordance with [he provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company arid for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection arid application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; a(Jd the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial contrcrs. that were operating 
effectively fer ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting record's, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that g ve a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement. whether due to traud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a golng concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to gofng concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends la liquidate the Campany or to oease 
operations, or has .no rea!istic alternative but lo do so. 

The Board of Directo~ is also responsible for ove~eeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia~ Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material m1sstatemen!. whether due ta fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a iligh level ot assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists_ Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the r1isks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risl\.s, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is hjgher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to the financial statements 1n place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

3. Evaruate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of acco1.mting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenlion in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disdosures are inadequate. to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concem. 

5 Evaluate the overall presentation, stfuctur~ and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding , among other matters. the p.lanned scope 
and timing of !he audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters t'.hat may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From lhe matters c-0mmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters !hat were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing :so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication . 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1 . As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Ordler, 2020 ("the Order''), issued by the Central 
Government of India in temis ot sub~section ( 11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give rn the "Annexure 
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to !he extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reporl that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and befief were necessaty for the purposes of our audit. 

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as requited by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income. 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and ~he Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account. 

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st Match, 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controJs with reference to the financial 
statements of the Company and tt1e operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in 'Annexure B'. 

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197( 16} of the Act, as amended, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remun.eration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is m accordance with the 
provision.s of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Acl. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance witii Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March, 2023 on its 
financial position in its financial statements - Refer note no. 37 to the financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; 

ii i. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as 
dtsc1osed in the Note no. 44{i) to the financia1 statements, no funds have be-en 
advanced or loaned or invested (eilher from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entilies ("Intermediaries"), with the underetanding, 
whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall , directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee. security or t'he like M behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The manageme11t .has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief as 
disclosed in the note no. 440) to the financial statements. no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entjties 
(~Funding Parties· ). with lhe understanding, whelher recorded in writing or olherwise, 
that the Company shall. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties {'Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based Otl the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate Jn the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under s1.1b-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e). as 
provided under {a) and (b) above. contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

vi. Proviso to Rule3(1 ) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 for maintaining books of 
accounts using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) 
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April. 2023, c;md accordingly. 
reporting under Rule 11 (g} of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable 
for the financial year ended 31st March; 2023. 

Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
Date: 30.05.2023 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Rep<>rt on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report to the Membeirs of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited of even date) 

In terms of the mformat1on and explanations sought by us and given by the Campany and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course af audit and to the best of our knowledge an.d 
belief. we state that: 

(i) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

{a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details a11d situation of Property, Plant and Equipment cind Capital work-in-progress. 

(8) The Company has not held any intangible asset during the period under review. 
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{i)(a)(B} of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified during the year by the 
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which in our opinion, 
provides for physical verification ot all tile Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification 

{c} The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in 
the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, PJant and Equipment during the year .. 

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 and rules made 
thereunder 

(ii) (a) The inventories except for goods-in-transi t and stocks held with third parties, were physically 
verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the coverage 
and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard ta !he size of 
the Company and the nature of its operations. For stocks held with third parties at the year-end. 
writte11 confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods-in-transit. the goods have been 
received subsequent to the year-end. No a1screpanc1es of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories, when compared 
with the books of account. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned worki11g capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any 
point of time during the year. Accordingly. the i"eporting under clause 3(ii) (bl of the Order is not 
applicable. 
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(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Umited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year except for that the Company has granted interest 
free unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans to employees during the year. in respect of 
which~ 

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the 11ature of loans to employees and details of 
which are given below: 

Particulars Amount(~ in Lakhs) 
A_ Aggregate amounl of loans or advances in the nature of loans 5.69 

!granted during the year to Employees: 
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date with 0.00 

Employees: 

(b} The terms a nd conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loans or advances In the nature 
of loans to employees during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
Company's interest 

(c) In respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to employees, the schedule of 
repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts are regular 
as per stipulation. There are no interest bearing roans given by the Company. 

(d) In respecl of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, there is no 
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by tile Company which has fallen due during 
the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing 
loans given to the sarrie parties. 

(D The Company has not granted any loans or ad11ances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(1ii} {f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities that 
are covered under the provisions of sections 185 or 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. 
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vf) The mafntenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) 
of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to 
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 201 4. as amended, prescribed by the Central 
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148{1 ) of the Act, and are of the opinion 
that, prima facie. the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We 
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete. 
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(vii) (a} The Company is regular in depositing, with the appropriate authori ties. undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services Tax. provident fund, employees· state insurance, income-lax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, oess and any other 
material statutory dues applicable to it, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. 
Based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such 
statutory dues were outstanding. as at 31st March. 2023, for a period of more than six months 
frnm the dale they became payable. 

(b} Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a} above which have not beem deposited as at 
31st March, 2023 on account of any dispute are given below: 

Name of Nature of Amount (~ Amount Paid/ Period to which Forum where dispute is 
the the Dues in Lakhs) adjusted the amount pending 
Statute {Gross) under Protest relates 

(~ in Lakhs) (Assessment 
Year) 

Haryana Value 3.98 3.98 2012-2013 Before the Joint Excise and 
Value added tax Taxation Commissioner 
Added (Appeals), Haryana 
Tax Act, 
2003 

{viii) There were no transactions r"elaling to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or 
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961) during the 
year. 

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter lby any 'bank or firnancial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there were no unutilised term 
loans at the beginning of the year. Accordingly. the reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short­
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defiried in the Act) 
during the period under review_ Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Orde' is 
not applicable. 

(f) Hie Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) 
during the period under review. Accordingly, the reporting u.inder clause 3(ix)(f} of the Order is not 

applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(Q) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible} during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

35 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 

{b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has 
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up ta the date of this 
report 

(c) As represented to us by the Management. there were no whistle-blower cornp,aints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company 1s in compljance with Section 177 artd 188 of the Act, where applicable. for all 
tl"ansactions with ths related parties and the details or related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standatds. 

(xiv) {a) In our opinion, the Company has an i11ternal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 
of i ts business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company dming the year and 
covering the period upto 31st Marc.h, 2023. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with its directors and accordingly, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xvi) (a) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 (2. of 1934) are not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the reporting undet clause 3{xvi)(a) of ttie Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non - ~anKing Financial or Housing Finance a.clivities and 
is not required to obtain CoR tot such activities from the Reserve Bank of l11dia. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of india. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) The Company does not form part cf any Group as defined in t.he Cote Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. Accordingly, the l"eporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(xvii) The Compa11y has not incurred cash losses in the financial year covered by our audft and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) Tt1ere t1as been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
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(xix) On the basis of the financial rahos, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial l1ab1l1tres. other informatio.n accompanying the financial statements and our 

knov;,1ledge of the Board ot Dtrr.c~ors and Management plans and based on our examinahon of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to o ur attention. which causes us to believe 
that any material uncer:ainty exists as on the date of the a1Jd1t report indicating that Compa11y is nol 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is nol an assurance as 
to lhe fu ture viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the dale of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when fhe)' fall due. 

(xx} (a) The Company has not transferred the amount remaining u11spent (~ 6.87 lakhs) in respect of 
other than ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act ti ll the date of our 
report. However. the time period for such transfer i.e. six months of the expiry of the tinanc1al 
year as permilled unae· l 'lc second proviso to sub-section (5) of Sectio11 135 of the Act, has not 
elapsed till the date of our report 

(bl The Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under sub-sectio;n (5) of Section 
135 of the Act, pursuant to any ongoing project. which is required to be transferred to special 
account in compliance with provision of suo-section (6) of Seclion 1 35 of the said Act. 

Place of Signature Chandigarh 
Date: 30.05.2023 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE lNDEPENDiENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f} under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report to the Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements under Clause (i) 
of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of Hisar Spinning 
MiHs Limited {' the Company') as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the fin ancial statements 
or the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility ifor Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establ ished by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal contrnl stated in the Guidance Note on A1,.Jdit of Internal Financial Controls 
over financial reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibili ties incll,.Jde the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adt1erence to Company's pol;cies, the safeguarding of its .assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparatLon of 
teliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted oLJr audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an a1,.Jdi t 
of internal fin:sncial controls and, both issued by lhe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
the financial statements was established and maintained and if such contirols operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing pmcedures to obtair audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with l"eference to the financial statements and their operati ng effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures serected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or 
error 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements . 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external pur'poses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's 
internal financial control with reference to the financial statements includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect lhe 

transactions and d1sposit1ons of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide 
reasonable assurance regarding pr'evention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use. or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financtal statements 

Inherent Umitatlons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial staternents 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error' or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to tile financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 

has, in all material respects an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the financial 

statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were operating 
effectively as at 31st March. 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company cons•dering the essential components of internal contro, stated in the Guidance Note issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
Date 30.05 2023 
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Balance Sheet a at 31st March, 2023 
t In lakh• 

Partlcul8N Note No. Aa at 31at Man:h12023 Aa at 31at March1 2022 
ASSETS 
Non-current aaets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 
(b) capital work-in-progress 4 
(c) Financial Assets 

(i) otherfinancial assets 5 
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 
(e) other l"IOIH:Unent assets 7 

Currentaaets 
(a) Inventories 8 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 9 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11 
(iv) other financial assets 12 

(C) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 
(d) other current assets 14 
(e) Non-current assets classified as held for sale 15 

Total Assets 

EQUnY AND LIABILmES 
Equity 
(a) Equity Share capital 16 
(b) other Equity 17 

LlabllltlH 
Non-current liabilities 
(a) Financial Uabllltles 

(i) Borrowings 18 
(II) other flnanclal llablllUes 19 

(b) other l'lOIH:Unent liabilities 20 

Current liabilitiea 
(a) Financial Uabllltles 

(i) Borrowings 21 
(II) Trade Payablea:- 22 

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small ente1J11rises: and 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro ente1J11rlsee and small ente!Jllrtses 

(Ill) other flnanclal llabllltles 23 
(b) other cummt liabilities 24 
(c) Provisions 25 

Total Equity and Uabllltlea 

See accompanying notes to the ftnanclal 1 - 46 
statements 

In tenns of our report of even date attached 
for JAIN & ANIL SOOD 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn's Registration No. 010505N 

Place: Chandigarfl 
Date: 30th May, 2023 

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) 
Partner 

Membership No. 088447 

706.64 907.97 
0.00 6.67 

37.15 51.47 
64.15 47.52 

3.71 811.65 36.44 1050.07 

1042.09 1087.01 

416.51 240.29 
26.42 102.58 

0.00 0.00 
28.03 42.31 

9.00 11.71 
281.09 202.61 

1.25 1804.39 4.94 1691.45 

2616.04 2741.52 

373.50 373.50 
1650.50 2024.00 1317.49 1690.99 

185.75 290.96 
1.41 2.57 
9.43 196.59 89.67 383.20 

108.62 172.98 

90.31 136.99 

105.99 214.96 

65.03 70.04 
22.11 59.02 

3.39 395.45 13.34 667.33 

2818.04 2741.52 

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlredors 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 

DIN-00192888 

(SHARAD GOEL) 
Chief Financial Officer 

(NIKHIL GOEL) 
Director 

DIN-01741446 

(NIKITA SINGLA) 
Company Secretary 

(NAVEEN KANSAL) 
Chief Executive Officer 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Lou for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Partlculars 

I Revenue From operations 
II Other Income 
Ill Total Income (1+11) 

IV Expenses 
Cost of materials consumed 
Changes in inventories of finished 
goods and work-in-111m1ress 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses (IV) 

v Profit before tax (lll·IV) 
VI Tax eX19enee: 

(1) Current tax 
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to ear11er 
periods 
(3) Deferred tax 

VII Profit for ttle year (V-VI) 

VIII Other Com111rehenslw Income 
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified 
to 111rofit or loss: 
Remeasurement& of the defined 
benefit 1tlans 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will 
not be reclassified to 111rofit or less 
Total Other Comprehensive Income/ 
(-) Ex"nse (VIII) 

IX Total CompNhenslw Income for the 
war (VH+Vlll) 

Note No. 

26 
27 

28 
29 

30 
31 
32 
33 

34 

Earnings per equity share (amount in t) 35 
(Nominal value of equity share- t 10/-) 
(1) Basic 
(2) Diluted 

See accompanying notes to the financial 1 - 46 
statements 

In tenns of our report of even date attached 
for JAIN & ANIL SOOD 
Chartered Acoountants 

Finn's Re1lstratlon No. 010505N 

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) 
Parlner 

Membership No. 088447 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 30th May, 2023 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

109.11 
0.00 

-16.63 

4669.15 
10.87 

4880.02 

2486.31 
31.66 

301.36 
30.99 

249.18 
1156.91 
4256A1 

423.11 

92A8 

331.13 

2.51 

-0.63 

1.88 

333.01 

8.87 
8.87 

tlnlakhs 
Year ended 

31st March, 2022 

86.51 
0.24 

48.37 

3593.11 
92.32 

3885.43 

1948.84 
-225.94 

294.04 
10.72 
59.55 

1050.31 
3137.52 

547.91 

135.12 

412.79 

-6.94 

1.75 

-5.19 

407.60 

11.05 
11.05 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 
DIN-00192888 

(SHARAD GOEL) 
Chief Flnanclal Officer 
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Director 
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(NIKITA SINGLA) 
Company Secretary 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

A. Equity Shan Cepltal 

B. 

Parllculars 

Balance at the betlinnin1 of the year 
Chan19S durin1 the year 
Balance at the end of the )'ear 

Other Eaultv 
Particulars 

Balance 88at1st April, 2022 
Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income/ (-) 
expense for the year, net of income tax 
Total comprehensive Income for the .,.., 
Balance u at 31st March, 2023 

Balance 88at1st April, 2021 
Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income/ (-) 
expense for the year, net of income tax 
Total comprehensive Income for the .,.., 
Balance n at 31st March, 2022 

Note: 

flnlekha 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
Numberof I Amount Numberof I Amount 

shares shares 
3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

t inlekhs 
Equity Reeerve and Sun>lus 

component Capital Retained Total 
of compound Redemption Earnings 

tlnandal Reserw 
Instruments 

17.55 65.00 1234.94 1317.49 
331.13 331.13 

1.88 1.88 

333.01 333.01 

17.55 65.00 1567.95 1650.50 

17.55 65.00 827.34 909.89 
412.79 412.79 

-5.19 -5.19 

407.80 407.80 

17.55 65.00 1234.94 1317..49 

A description of the purposes of each Reserve within Equity has been dlsclosed In Note No. 16. 

See accompanying notes to the financial 1 - 46 
statements 

In terms of our report of even date attached 
for JAIN & ANIL SOOD 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn's R99lstratlon No. 010505N 

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) 
Partner 

Membership No. 088447 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 3oth May, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 
DIN-00192888 

(SHARAD GOEL) 
Chief Financial Officer 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows for the YNr ended 31st March 2023 

Partlculars 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation expense 
Net loss/(·) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme 
Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment 
Fair value loss/ (·) gain on financial instruments at FVTPL 
Net loss/ ( ·) gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 
Provision for interest writtan back 
Deferred processing fees 
Interest income 
Finance costs 

011eratin1 llf'Ofit before workin1 ca11ital chan1• 

Changes In working capltal: 
Adjustments for decrease/{-} increase in 091rating assets:-
Inventories 
Trade receivables 
Other financial assets (current) 
Other financial assets (non-current) 
Other assets (current) 
Other assets (non-current) 

Adjustments for increase/{-} decrease in grating liabilities:-
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities (current) 
Other financial liabilities (non-current) 
Other liabilities (current) 
Provisions (current) 
Cash generated from operations 
Income taxes paid (net of refund) 
Net cash flows from/ (·) used In operating activities 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (lncludlng capital work-In· 
progress) 
Proceeds from dlsposal of property, plant and equipment 

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash egulvalents: 
(·)Increase/ decrease In deposits with more than twelve months maturity 
(pledged with banks towards margin against bank guarantees) 
(·)Increase/ decrease In deposits with ortglnal maturtty more than twelve 
months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months (pledged with 
banks towards margin against bank guarantees) 
(·)Increase/ decrease In deposits with ortglnal maturity more than three 
months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months 

Interest received 

Net cash ftows from/(·) used In Investing activities 
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Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

423.61 

249.18 
-0.21 

-86.77 
-0.03 
0.00 
0.00 

·1.16 
0.00 

·1.69 
30.99 

613.92 

44.92 
-176.22 

14.43 
-7.21 

-78.48 
32.74 

-155.65 
-4.44 
·1.16 

-36.89 
-7.44 

238.52 
-107.03 
131.48 

-34.84 

3.90 

20.79 

0.00 

0.00 

2.28 

-7.67 

flnlakha 
Year ended 

31st March, 2022 

547.91 

59.55 
0.00 

-82.94 
-0.04 
0.06 

·1.31 
-73.65 

0.03 
-6.76 
10.72 

453.57 

-308.12 
62.75 

-33.49 
·1.62 

-84.25 
-36.38 

226.03 
23.99 
·1.24 
32.40 
-0.04 

333.60 
-90.58 
243.02 

-618.51 

0.00 

-26.80 

17.01 

128.00 

16.18 

-484.12 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

c. 

Parllculars 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from borrowings (no~current) 
Repayment of borrowings (non~urrent) 
Proceeds from borrowings (current) (net) 
Finance costs paid (net of RTUFS subsidy and Interest subvention for 
MSMEs) 

Net cash ftows from/(-) used In nnanclng activities 

Net Increase/(-) decrease In cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the ,.ar 

Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the vear 
Balances with Banks 
- in current accounts 
Cashon hand 

Note: 

Year ended 
31st March. 2023 

0.00 
-76.83 
-96.16 
-26.99 

-199.98 

-76.16 

102.58 

26.42 

22.86 
3.56 

26.42 

tlnlakhs 
Year ended 

31st March1 2022 

347.07 
-41.62 

-7.42 
-8.80 

289.23 

48.13 

54.45 

102.58 

100.23 
2.35 

102.58 

1. The statement of cash Flows has been prepared In accordance with 'Indirect Method' as set out In lndlan 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 7 'Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

2. Chan9es In llablllty arlslnt from flnanclnt activities: 

Parllculars 

Opening balance of borrowings 
Borrowinas <non-current> 

-Term Loans (including current maturities) 
- Other long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Borrowings (currant) 
Cash Flows 
Proceeds from borrowings <non-current> 

-Term Loans 
- Other long-term borrowings 

Repayment of borrowings <non-current> 
-Term Loans 
- Other long-term borrowings 

Increase/(-) decrease in borrowings (current) 
Effective rate of interest adjustment 
Closlng balance or borrowings 
Borrowinas <non-current> 

-Term Loans (including current maturities) 
- Other long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Borrowings (currant) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (Note 1 - 46) 

tlnlakhs 
Ye•ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

367.79 60.71 
0.00 1.25 

96.16 103.58 

0.00 347.07 
0.00 0.00 

76.83 40.37 
0.00 1.25 

-96.16 -7.42 
3.41 0.38 

294.37 367.79 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 96.16 

In terms of our report of even date attached 
for JAIN & ANIL SOOD 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn's Registration No. 010505N 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 3oth May, 2023 

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) 
Partner 

Membership No. 088447 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 

DIN-00192888 

SHARAD GOEL) 
Chief Financial Officer 

(NIKHIL GOEL) 
Director 

DIN-01741446 

(NIKITA SINGLA) 
Company Secretary 

(NAVEEN KANSAL) 
Chief Executive Officer 
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

1. Co'llorate Information 

~
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Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (''the Company") is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India with its 
registered office situated at Village & Post Dabra, Hisar -125005, Haryana. The Company has been 
incorporated under 1he provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares are listed on the 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Limited in India. Corporate identification number of the Company is 
L 17112HR1992PLC031621and1he Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of 
cotton yam blended (textile product). 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30th May, 
2023. 

2. Si9nificant accountin1 111olicies 
The Company has consisten11y applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

(a) Basis of 11re11aration of financial statements 
These financial statements of 1he Company have been prepared in accordance wi1h the Indian 
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act•) 
read with 1he Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant 
provisions of the Act. 

(b) Basis of measurement af financial statements 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following items: 

Defined benefit liabilities/ (assets) are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of 
defined benefit obligation. 

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair value. 

Other financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR'), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Lakhs up to 2 decimal points, unless 
otherwise indicated. 

(d) Use of estimates and jud9ments 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
estimates, judgmen1s and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amoun1s of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during 1he period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management 
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are 
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made. Differences between 
actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materialised. 
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(e) Current versus non-current classlftcatlon 
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All assets and liabilities have been dassified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Division II of Schedule Ill to the Act. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or 
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

Assets 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

It is expected to be realised in, or is intended to be sold or consumed in, the Company's nonnal 
operating cycle; 

It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified 
as non-current. 

Llabllltles 
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 

It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting date. 

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are 
classified as non-current. 

(f) Pro,.rty, 11lant and 9t1ui11ment 
All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (other than 
freehold land) and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment comprises: 

its purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates, 

any attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental 
expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the 
date the asset is ready for its intended use 
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the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which 
it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a 
consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce 
inventories during that period. 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property, Plant and Equipment 
recognised as on 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as on transition date. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at end of each 
reporting date is classified as 'capital advances• under the note of "Other non-current assets" and the 
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under "Capital work-in-progress". 

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in net profit in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when incurred. 

The Company identities and determines cost of each component I part of property, plant and equipment 
separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the property, plant 
and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains or losses arising 
from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss when the property, plant and equipment is derecognised. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on diminishing balance method (written down 
value method) in the manner and over the useful life of the assets prescribed under Part •c• of Schedule 
II to the Act except for certain items of plant and equipment having gross carrying amount of' 19.60 
Lakhs (previous year~ 19.60 Lakhs) and of building having gross carrying amount of~ 4.21 Lakhs 
(previous year f 4.21 Lakhs) where the management estimates the life as 3 and 5 years respectively 
based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by external valuers. The 
management believes that the useful life of 3 and 5 years respectively for the said assets best represent 
the period over which the management expects to consume future economic benefits embodied in these 
assets through its use. Hence the useful life of these assets is different from the useful life as prescribed 
under Part 'C' of Schedule II to the Act. 

On the basis of internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by external 
valuers, the residual value of certain items of plant and equipment having gross carrying amount of ' 
17.58 lakhs (previous year' 17.58 lakhs) has been considered as' 5.27 lakhs (previous year' 5.27 
lakhs) and of building having gross carrying amount of' 4.21 lakhs (previous year' 4.21 lakhs) has 
been considered as' 0.63 lakhs (previous year' 0.63 lakhs). 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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(1) Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
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The Company classifies non current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered 
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Current assets classified as held for sale 
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the 
incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense. 

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and 
the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale/ 
distribution should indicate that it is unlikely 1hat significant changes to 1he sale will be made or that the 
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale and the sale expected 
within one year from the date of classification. 

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current 
assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is 
regarded met only when the assets is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to 
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will 
genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when: 

The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset, 

An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable), 

The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of 
classification, and 

Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan 
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. 

(h) lm19alnnent of assets 
i. Financial assets (other than those carried at fair value) 

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL} model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an 
amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at 
an amount equal to the 12-months ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected 
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 
amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

II. Non-tlnanclal assets 
The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the assef s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets 
that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units 
(CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are 
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 
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The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its 
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the 
assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods (if any), the 
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent 
that the assefs carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

(I) Inventories 
Inventories (other than saleable waste) have been valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 
However, raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written 
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or 
above cost. 

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition; where the costs of purchase of 
inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently 
recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and 
other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase. The cost in respect of different 
classifications of inventories is computed as under: 

in case of raw materials, stock-in-trade, stores and spare-parts etc. at first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost 
method plus direct expenses. 

in case of work-in-progress at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus appropriate 
portion of conversion cost and other overheads incurred depending upon the stage of completion. 

in case of finished goods at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus conversion 
cost, packing cost and other overheads incurred to bring the goods up to their present location and 
condition. 

Saleable waste has been valued at estimated net realisable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and to make the sale. 

Provision for obsolete/ old inventories is made, wherever required. 
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(j) Trade receivables 
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold perfonned in the ordinary course of 
business. If the receivable is expected to be collected within a period of 12 months or less from the 
reporting date (or in the normal operating cycle of 1he business, if longer), they are classified as current 
assets otherwise as non-current assets. 

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant financing 
component in accordance with Ind AS 115 for pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. 

(k) Forei9n currency transactions 
The foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by 
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

The foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate at 1he end of each reporting 
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall be 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on the 
settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they 
were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements shall be 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

(I) Em,loyee benefits 
i. Short-term em,loyee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed 
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., 
bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result 
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

ii. Defined contribution ,1ans 
For certain group of employees, employee benefit in 1he form of Provident fund, Employees State 
Insurance Contribution and Labour Welfare fund are defined contribution plans. The Company has 
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company recognises 
contribution payable to these funds/ schemes as an expense, when an employee renders the 
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance 
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, 1he deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as 
a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If 1he contribution already paid exceeds the 
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, 1hen excess is recognised as 
an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment 
or a cash refund. 

Ill. Defined benefit 19lans 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 
Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan'} covering 
eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based 
on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. 

51 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an 
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The 
Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 
though a trust formed by the Company for the purpose. LIC adminis1rate contributions and 
contributions are invested in the schemes as permitted by the laws of India. 

The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an 
asset or liability. Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset 
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return 
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

iv. Compensated absences 
Based on the leave rules of the Company, employees are not permitted to accumulate leave. Any 
unavailed privileged leave to the extent encashable is paid to the employees and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. 

(m) Revenue recognition 
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Company's activities, as described below. The Company bases its estimate of return on historical 
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each 
arrangement. 

i. Revenue from sale of goods 
Revenue is measured at the 1ransaction price of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 
from sale of goods is recognised as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by 
transferring control of the promised goods to its customers as per terms of contract. Amounts 
disclosed as revenue are net of returns, 1rade discounts, goods and services tax and amount 
collected on behalf of third parties. 

ii. Revenue from other than sale of goods 
Export incentives and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the 
Company will comply with the conditions and the incentives/ subsidies will be received. 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable. 

(n) Borrowin1 costs 
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in 
the period in which they are incurred. 
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(o) Government grants 
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Govemment grants are recognised where 1here is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and 1he Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

Govemment grants that compensate 1he Company for expenses incurred are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, as income or deduction from the relevant expense, on a systematic basis 
in the periods in which the expense is recognised. 

Govemment grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a diminishing balance basis over 
the expected lives of the related assets to match them with the costs for which they are intended to 
compensate and presented within other income. In case of the Government grant received is to 
compensate the import cost of assets subject to an export obligation as primary condition, Government 
grants are included in liabilities as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit and loss 
according to fulfilment of associated export obligation and presented within other operating revenues. 

(p) Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such 
as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts. 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the ins1rument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for 
trade receivables which are initially measured at 1ransaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair 
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial asset or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

i. Non - Derivatives Financial assets 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade 
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

Classlflcatlons 
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequen11y measured at either amortised cost or 
fair value depending on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of 1he financial assets. 

Business model assessment 
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held 
at an instrument level because this best reflects the way 1he business is managed and information 
is provided to management. 
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met: 
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows. 

the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate ('EIR') method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the profit or loss. 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where 
the financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal 
and interest but also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in 
other comprehensive income. 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets are 
managed in accordance with an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale 
decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. 

Derecognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction 
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred 
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance 
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the 
transferred assets are not derecognised. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or 
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised} and the sum of (i) the 
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and {ii) 
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
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ii. Financial liabilities 
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All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method or at FVTPL. 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and 
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, 
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Flnanclal llabllltles at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon 
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured 
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or 
loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expired. 

Ill. Derivative flnanclal Instruments 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, e.g. foreign currency foreign exchange forward 
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised 
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at 
their fair value at the end of each period. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value 
of derivatives are taken direcUy to profit or loss. 

(Ill) Measurement of fair values 
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and 
assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. All methods 
of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be 
realised. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirecUy (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 
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When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as 
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the 
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

(r) Cash and cash et1uivalents 
cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the 
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents is as defined above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities. 

(a) Eamln1a 11er share 
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(t) Provisions and contin9ent liabilities 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future obligation 
at pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money risks specific to 
liability. They are not discounted where they are assessed as current in nature. Provisions are not made 
for future operating losses. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly with in the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past 
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial 
statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

Commitments are items that are not reported as liabilities as on reporting date. Capital commitments are 
disclosed when there is a projected capital expenditure to spend on long-term assets over a period of 
time. Other commitments are disclosed when there is an undertaking to fulfil quantified exports in future 
years. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting date. 
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(u) Taxation 
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Income tax expense represents 1he sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and deferred 
tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognised in other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively. 

I. Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 
of current tax reflects the best estimates of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax 
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously. 

ii. Defemtd tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the balance sheet and 1he corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction 
that affects neither the taxable profit nor 1he accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 1he end of each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of 1he asset to be recovered. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they 
can be used. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or 1he asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 1he reporting date. The measurement of deferred 
tax assets and liabilities reflects 1he tax consequences 1hat would follow from the manner in which 
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a 
net basis. 
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The Company is primarily in the business of manufacturing and sale of cotton yam blended (textile 
product). The Board of Directors of 1he Company, which has been identified as being 1he Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM), evaluates 1he Company's performance, allocate resources based on 
the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is 
only one reportable segment for the Company. 

(w) Recent accountin1 ,ronouncements 
On 31st March, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (•McA•) 'through Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 has notified various amendments to Ind AS. These amendments 
are applicable to the Company from 1st April, 2023. 

i. Ind AS 1 • Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their 
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, toge1her with other information, is 
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general 
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect 1his amendment 
to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

ii. Ind AS 8 • Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to 
Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting 
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are •monetary amounts in financial 
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty". Entities develop accounting estimates if 
accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves 
measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect 1he amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements. 

iii. Ind AS 12 - Income taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases 
and decommissioning obligations. This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial 
recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to 
equal and deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment 
'lnl•khs 

O..Crtptlon of ...ta Groa canv1na amount Accumulated o-1at1on Net amount 
Balance as at Additions Disposals/ Balance as at Balance as at Depreciation Biminated Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at 
1stApr11, 2022 during the adjustments 3181March,2023 1st April, 2022 fortheyaer on dlsposala/ 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

year adjustments 
Freehold Land 13.88 0.00 0.00 13.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.88 13.88 
Buildings 337.74 0.00 0.00 337.74 172.82 15.96 0.00 188.78 148.96 164.92 
Plant and Equipment 2287.65 45.96 0.00 2333.61 1569.53 230.06 0.00 1799.61 534.00 718.12 
Fumiture and Fixtures 7.12 0.78 0.00 7.90 5.36 0.49 0.00 5.85 2.05 1.76 
Vehicles 53.70 0.00 0.00 53.70 47.71 1.23 0.00 48.94 4.76 5.99 
Ollice equipment 18.33 1.11 0.00 19.44 15.03 1.42 0.00 16A5 2.99 3.30 
Total 27t8A2 47.85 0.00 2716.27 1810A5 249.18 0.00 2059.83 706.84 907.97 

'lnlakhs 
O..Crtptlon of ...ta Groa carrvlna amount Accumulated D8DNClatlon Net - amount 

Balance as at Additions Disposals/ Balance as at Balance as at Depreciation Biminated Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at 
1st April, 2021 during the adjustments 3181 March, 2022 1st April, 2021 fortheyaer on disposals/ 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

war adiustments 
Freehold Land 13.88 0.00 0.00 13.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.88 13.88 
Buildings 244.91 92.83 0.00 337.74 164.55 8.27 0.00 172.82 164.92 80.36 
Plant and Equipment 1718.64 604.01 35.00 2287.65 1552.53 47.06 30.06 1569.53 718.12 166.11 
Fumiture and Fixtures 8.20 0.92 0.00 7.12 5.08 0.28 0.00 5.36 1.76 1.12 
Vehicles 53.07 0.63 0.00 53.70 45.39 2.32 0.00 47.71 5.99 7.68 
Ollice equipment 15.39 2.94 0.00 18.33 13.41 1.62 0.00 15.03 3.30 1.98 
Total 2052.09 70t.33 35.00 27t8A2 1780.98 59.55 30..o& 1810.A! 907.97 27t.13 

Note• on Property, Plant and Equipment: 
1. Refer Note No. 18 and Note No. 21 for details of pledge and securities of property, plant and equipment. 
2. Borrowing coslB capitalised during the year' Nil lakhs (previous yaer ended 31st March, 2022' Nil lakhs). 
3. During the year ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022, no impairment indicators existed for any of its assets or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) and accordingly no provision for 
impairment has been recognised. 
4. Refer Note no. 2 (f) for option used by the Company to use carrying value of previous GAAP as deemed cost as on 1st April, 2016. 
5. The title deeds of all the immovable properliee held by the Company are in the name of the Company. 
6. The Company has not 1'8Valued its ptt>perty, plant and equipment during the yaer ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022. 
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Partlculars Asat 
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tlnlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
4. Capital work-in-progl'88a 

Capital work-in-progress as at the end of the year 
Total 

Note: 

0.00 6.67 
0.00 6.67 

1. Capital work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment under construction, installation and 
cost of asset not ready for use as at year end. 
2. Refer Note No. 18 and Note No. 21 for information on capital work-in-progress pledged as security 
by the Company. 

(a) Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022: 
t'inlakhs 

Projects in progress Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total 

1 year 3 years 

As at 31st March 2023 
As at 31st March, 2022 6.67 6.67 

(b) There are no such projects under capital work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has 
exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as of 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022. 
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Particulars 

5. other flnanclal assets (non-current)• 
Flnanclal assets at amortised cost 
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Security deposits 
Deposits with banks having more than twelve months maturity (pledged 
with banks towards margin against bank guarantees) [refer Note no. 11] 

Interest accrued on deposits with banks 
Total 

* Refer Note no. 39 

6. Deferred tax assets (net) 
Defemtd tax ••sets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Govemment grants 
Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax llabllltles 

Deferred tax assets (net) (refer Note no. 34) 

Note: 

~
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tinlakhs 
As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 

29.95 
7.20 

0.00 
37.15 

63.80 
0.35 

64.15 

0.00 

64.15 

22.74 
27.99 

0.74 
51.47 

46.87 
0.65 

47.52 

0.00 

47.52 

The Company is confident that the deferred tax assets callied at the end of the year is fully recoverable and there 
will be sufficient future taxable profits to adjust deferred tax assets arising on aooount of property, plant and 
equipment and government grants. 

7. other non-cumtnt ••• 
Non Flnanclal anets at amortised coat 
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Capital advances 
Advances other than capltal advance• 

Prepaid expenses 
Total 
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'inlakhs 
Particulars As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 
8. Inventories 

(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated) 

Raw materials 
Work-in-progress 
Finished goods 
Stores and spares 
Saleable waste (valued at net realisable value) 
Total 

Goods-in-transit included in above inventories are as under: 
Raw materials 
Finished goods 

Note: 

461.55 
164.41 
350.96 
61.49 
3.68 

1042.09 

0.00 
0.00 

1. Refer Note No. 21 for charge created on inventories to secure short-term borrowings. 
2. The method of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note no. 2 (i). 

488.18 
281.78 
266.71 
48.12 
2.22 

1087.01 

20.92 
40.14 

3. Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes t Nil lakhs (previous year ended 31st March, 2022 t 
Nil lakhs) in respect of write-downs of inventory to net realisable value. 

9. Trade recelvables 
Trade receivables- unsecured, considered good 
Total 

Note: 

416.51 
416.51 

1. Refer Note No. 21 for charge created on trade receivables to secure short-term borrowings. 

240.29 
240.29 

2. No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any 
other person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director 
is a partner or a director or a member. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 
to 120 days of credit period. 
3. The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are 
disclosed in Note no. 39. 
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Trade Receivables ageing schedule: 

Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2023 
(A) Undisputed Trade recelvables 
(i) Considered good 
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Credit impaired 
(B) Disputed Trade receivables 
(i) Considered good 
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Credit impaired 
Total 

O> I Particulars 
VJ 

As at 31st March, 2022 
(A) Undisputed Trade recelvablea 
(i) Considered good 
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Credit impaired 
(B) Dla1tuted Trade recelvablea 
(i) Considered good 
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Credit impaired 
Total 

I Unbilled I Not due I Outstandin 
Less than 
6 months rs 

0.00 325.94 90.57 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 
0.00 o.oo o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 
0.00 o.oo o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 325.94 90.57 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 

Unbilled Not due Outstandina for followina Deriods from due date of Davment 
Less than 

I I I 6 months I -1 ~ar I ~ars I ~ars 1 3vears 

0.00 191.94 48.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 191.94 48.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

tlnlakhs 
Total 

416.51 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

416.51 

tlnlakhs 
Total 

240.29 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

240.29 
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'inlakhs 
Particulars Asat As at 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 
10. Cash and cash equlvalents• 

Balances with Banks 
- in current accounts/ debit balance in cash credit account 22.86 100.23 
Cashon hand 3.56 2.35 
Total 26.42 102.58 

* Refer Note no. 39 

11. Bank balances other than cash and cash equlvalents• 
Other bank balances 
Deposits with banks having more than twelve months maturity (pledged 7.20 27.99 
with banks towards margin against bank guarantees) 
Less: Amounts disclosed as other financial assets (non-current) [refer 7.20 27.99 
Note no. 5] 
Total o.oo 0.00 

* Refer Note no. 39 

12. Other flnanclal assets (current)* 
Flnanclal assets at amortised cost 
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Interest receivable 
Interest subsidy receivable 
Duty drawback receivable on export 
RoDTEP receivable on export (refer note below) 
Total 

Note: 

1.89 1.74 
6.84 6.84 
0.00 4.18 

19.30 29.55 
28.03 42.31 

The new scheme for Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RoDTEP) was introduced by Ministry 
of Commerce and Industry vide notification dated 17th August, 2021 for eligible exported goods. Accordingly, the 
Company has recognised in Revenue from operations the benefit of RoDTEP of' 6.47 Lakhs during the year 
ended 31st March, 2022 pertaining to eligible export sales for the period from 1st January, 2021 to 31st March, 
2021. 
* Refer Note no. 39 

13. Current Tax Assets (Net) 
Advance income tax (net of provision for current tax) 
Total 

9.00 11.71 
9.00 11.71 
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Particulars 

14. othercurTentaasets 
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Advances to suppliers of goods and services 
Other advances 
Balances with Indirect Tax Authorities (taxes and duties recoverable/ 
refundable) 
Taxes and duties deposited under protest 
Prepaid expenses 
Total 

15. Non-current anat. claHified •• held for sale 
Property, plant and equipment held for sale 
Total 

Note: 

~
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'inlakhs 
As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 

2.85 
1.50 

269.33 

3.98 
3.43 

281.09 

1.25 
1.25 

1.22 
5.89 

189.27 

3.98 
2.25 

202.61 

4.94 
4.94 

1. The Company reclassifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. During the previous year ended 31st 
March, 2022, the Company has reclassified property, plant and equipment with net carrying amount oft 4.94 
lakhs as held for sale. The management has estimated realisable value of assets held for sale higher than its 
carrying value on the date of re-classification. Management is in the process of selection of potential buyers and 
is expecting to sell the aforesaid assets within next twelve months. 
2. During the year, the Company has sold property, plant and equipment held for sale with carrying amount of' 
3.69 lakhs fort 3.90 lakhs. The resultant gain oft 0.21 lakhs has been disclosed in statement of profit and loss 
under Other Income. 
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16. 

'lnlakha 
Parllculars Aaat Aaat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
Equity Share capltal 

Number of Amount Number Amount 
shares of shares 

Authorised sha1"8 capltal: 
Equity shares of' 10/- each 8000000 800.00 8000000 800.00 

Preference shares off 10/- each 2000000 200.00 2000000 200.00 

Total 1000.00 1000.00 

Issued share capital: 
Equity shares off 10/- each 3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

Total 3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

Subscribed and fully paid up share capltal: 
Equity shares of' 10/- each 3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

Total 3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 

(a) Reconclllatlon of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at 
the end of the year: 

Equity shares off 10/- each: 
Particulars Number of Amount Number Amount 

shares of shares 
Number of shares and amount 3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 
at the beginning of the year 
Change in number of shares 
and amount during the year 
Number of shares and amount 3735000 373.50 3735000 373.50 
at the end of the year 

(b) The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including 
restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital: 
Equity shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of' 10/- per share. 
Upon a show of hands every member holding equity shares and entitled to vote and present in 
person shall have one vote: and upon a poll the voting right of every member holding equity shares 
and entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy shall be in the same proportion as the capital 
paid on the equity share or shares (whether fully paid or partly paid up) held by him bears to the total 
paid up equity capital of the Company. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board shall be subject 
to the approval of the shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the 
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after disbibution of 
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders. 

(c) Shares held by holdlng company or 119 ultlmate holdlng company or subsidiaries or 
associates of the holdlng company or the ultlmate holdlng company In aggregate: 
There are no holding or ultimate holding company of the Company. 

(d) Shareholders holdlng more than 5% shares of the Company: 
Equity shares off 10/-each: 
Name of the shareholder Number of %age Number %age 

shares of shares 
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(e) The Company has not Issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash 
and has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding 31st 
March, 2023. 

(f) Details of sharas held by promoters at the and of the year: 
E•ultv shares off 10/-aach 
Promoter Name 

Anurag Gupta 
Anuj Gupta 
Mohan Lal Kansai 
NikhilGoel 
SharadGoel 
AnkitGoel 
Gopal Krishan Gupta 
Guiab Singh Goel 
Usha Rani Gupta 
Sapna Kansai 
Sharda Kansai 
Sunita Goel 
Shashi Bhushan Gupta 
Ashwani Kumar 
Davinder Kumar Goel 
Hari Kishan Goyal 
GSGoel HUF 
Sharat G Goel 
GopalAnuj HUF 
Gopal Anurag HUF 
Arun Goel 
Naveen Kansai 
TarunGoel 
Manju Goel 
Shruti Goel 
BinduGoel 
Ritesh Goel 
Shilpa Garg 
Anju Gupta 
MeghaGoel 
Total 

As at 31st March. 2023 
Number of 
shares 

184250 
181683 
163867 
160400 
148100 
146190 
115000 
97600 
75000 
63100 
60000 
56900 
54650 
52950 
45000 
40400 
27940 
26540 
25000 
25000 
25000 
22200 
19100 
15100 
11000 
10000 
9300 
8700 
7700 
7200 

1884870 

% of total 
shares 

4.93% 
4.86% 
4.39% 
4.30% 
3.97% 
3.91% 
3.08% 
2.61% 
2.01% 
1.69% 
1.61% 
1.52% 
1.46% 
1.42% 
1.21% 
1.08% 
0.75% 
0.71% 
0.67% 
0.67% 
0.67% 
0.59% 
0.51% 
0.40% 
0.30% 
0.27% 
0.25% 
0.23% 
0.21% 
0.19% 

50.46% 
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% change 
during the 
vear 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

-0.03% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

-0.03% 

As at 31st March. 2022 
Number of 
shares 

184250 
181683 
163867 
160400 
148100 
146190 
115000 
97600 
75000 
63100 
60000 
56900 
54650 
52950 
45000 
40400 
27940 
27540 
25000 
25000 
25000 
22200 
19100 
15100 
11000 
10000 
9300 
8700 
7700 
7200 

1885870 

% of total 
shares 

4.93% 
4.86% 
4.39% 
4.30% 
3.97% 
3.91% 
3.08% 
2.61% 
2.01% 
1.69% 
1.61% 
1.52% 
1.46% 
1.42% 
1.21% 
1.08% 
0.75% 
0.74% 
0.67% 
0.67% 
0.67% 
0.59% 
0.51% 
0.40% 
0.30% 
0.27% 
0.25% 
0.23% 
0.21% 
0.19% 

50.49% 

% change 
during the 
vear 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
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17. 

'lnlakhs 
Partlculars Aaat Aaat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
Other Equity 
(a) Equity component of compound flnanclal Instruments 
Balance at the beginning of the year 17.55 17.55 
Additions/ deductions during the year 0.00 0.00 
Balance at the end of the year 17.55 17.55 

(b) Capital redemption reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 65.00 65.00 
Additions/ deductions during the year 0.00 0.00 
Balance at the end of the year 65.00 65.00 

(c) Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1234.94 827.34 
Profit for the year 331.13 412.79 
Other comprehensive income/(-) expense for the year, net of income tax 1.88 -5.19 

Total com,rehenalve Income for the year 333.01 407.60 
Balance at the end of the year 1567.95 1234.94 

Total 1650.50 1317.49 

Natura and purpose of rnerves/ other equity: 
(a) Equity component of redeemable preference shares: Under previous GAAP, 5% redeemable non­
cumulative preference shares oft 65.00 Lakhs were classified as part of total equity. However, under Ind AS the 
non-cumulative redeemable preference shares are compound financial instruments, where the liability component 
outstanding at the date of transition is bifurcated by first valuing the debt component with the residual being 
equity. The liability component is determined as the present value of the eventual redemption amount of ' 65.00 
Lakhs of preference shares, discounted at the rate at which the Company could issue a similar instrument with a 
similar credit standing but without the feature of discretionary dividends during its life. At the transition date i.e., 
01.04.2016, 5% redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of ' 65.00 Lakhs were bifurcated into liability 
component amounting to ' 21.95 Lakhs and the residual ' 43.05 Lakhs being equity. The preference shares of' 
65.00 Lakhs were redeemed at a pre-mature date during the financial year 2018-19. At the time of pre-mature 
redemption of 5% redeemable non-cumulative preference shares oft 65.00 Lakhs during the financial year 2018-
19, an amount oft 25.50 Lakhs were allocated from equity component of compound financial instrument and 
residual ' 39.50 Lakhs from the liability component by taking the fair value of compound financial instrument at 
the time of its redemption. After allocation of' 25.50 Lakhs from equity component of compound financial 
instrument at the time of its redemption, balance amount oft 17.55 Lakhs is outstanding as on the Balance 
Sheet date. 
(b) Capltal redemption reserve: Capital redemption reserve has been created pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 on account of redemption of preference shares out of the profits of the 
Company. 

(c) Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profit that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers 
to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to investors. 

Remeuurements of the defined benefit plans which are the part of retained earnings represents the 
followlng u per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits: 
(i) actuarial gains and losses; 
(ii) the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); 
and 
(ii) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset). 
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Partlculars 

18. Borrowings (non-cul'l'9nt)• 
Secured - at amortised cost 
Tenn loan from bank# 
Tenn loan from financial institution# 
Total 

(a) Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others: 
Tenn loan from bank: 
Tenn loan from Punjab National Bank is secured by: 
A. Primary Security: 

Aaat 

~
-r-
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'lnlakhs 
Aaat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

0.00 
185.75 
185.75 

9.62 
281.34 
290.96 

(i) Hypothecation of machinery, other assets and equipments purchased with the bank loan. 

B. Collateral Security: 
(i) First charge on all the existing (except assets financed by SIDBI) and future block assets of the Company. 

(ii) Extension of first pari passu charge with SIDBI by way of equitable mortgage of factory land measuring 34 
kanals and 14 marlas and building constructed thereon (20993.5 sq. yards) located at 9th KM Stone, Hisar 
Bhiwani Raad, VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana. 

Tenn loan from Punjab National Bank is further covered by irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of 
the directors of the Company namely Sh. Anurag Gupta, Smt. Sapna Kansai and Sh. Nikhil Goel. 

Tenn loan from flnanclal Institution: 
Tenn loan from financial institution i.e., Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) is secured by: 
A. Primary Security: 
(i) First charge by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDBI on all the movables of the borrower including plant and 
machinery, equipment, miscellaneous fixed assets, machinery spares, tools and accessories etc. acquired/ to be 
acquired under the project. 

B. Collateral Security: 
(i) First charge by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDBI of the entire movables of the borrower including plant, 
equipment, machinery, machinery spares, miscellaneous fD<ed assets, tools, accessories, furniture, fixtures, 
computers etc. which have already been charged to SIDBI for earlier assistances. 

(ii) Extension of first pari passu charge with Punjab National Bank by way of equitable mortgage of factory land 
measuring 34 kanals and 14 marlas and building constructed thereon (20993.5 sq. yards) located at 9th KM 
Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana. 
(iii) Tenn loan from financial institution is further guaranteed under Partial Risk Sharing Facility for Energy 
Efficiency for not less than 75% of term loan. 

Tenn loan from financial institution is further covered by irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of the 
director of the Company namely Sh. Anurag Gupta, Smt. Sapna Kansai , Nikhil Goel and Chief Executive of the 
Company namely Sh. Naveen Kansai. 
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(b) Tenns of repayment: 
Tann loan from bank: 

~
-r-
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Term loan of f 54.51 Lakhs from Punjab National Bank is repayable in 60 monthly instalments off 0.91 Lakh 
each commencing with effect from April 2019. Rate of interest@ 9.45% p.a. as at 31st March, 2023 and@ 
7.20% p.a. as at 31st March, 2022. 

finlakhs 
Year wise repayment schedule 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
Term loan from bank 10.90 10.90 9.76 

Tenn loans from financial institution: 
Term loan with sanctioned amount of t 445.00 Lakhs (disbursed t 353.75 Lakhs) is repayable in 54 monthly 
instalments as per original sanctioned amount comprising of first 53 monthly instalments of t 8.24 Lakhs each 
and last instalment of ' 8.23 L.akhs commencing after a moratorium of 6 months from the date of first 
disbursement of the loan during February 2022. As the availment in the term loan account is' 353.75 Lakhs only, 
the said term loan is repayable in first 45 monthly instalments of t 8.24 Lakhs each and last instalment of t 2.95 
Lakhs with effect from August 2022. Rate of interest@8.35% p.a. as at 31st March, 2023 and @5.65% p.a. as 
at 31st March, 2022. 

finlakhs 
Year wise repayment schedule 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 
Term loans from financial institution 98.89 98.89 98.89 

2025-26 
57.07 

(c) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings and interest thereon during the reporting years. 
Further, there have been no breach of covenants mentioned in the loan agreements during the reporting years. 

(#)For the current maturities of long-term borrowings, refer Note no. 21 Borrowings (current). 

* Refer Note no. 39 
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Particulars 

19. other flnanclal llabllltles (non-current)* 
Flnanclal llabllltles at amortised cost 
Other interest accrued but not due 
Total 

* Refer Note no. 39 

20. other non-current llabllltlea 
Deferred revenue - Government grant (refer note below) 
Total 

Note: 

~
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tinlakhs 
As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 

1.41 2.57 
1A1 2.57 

9.43 89.67 
9A3 89.67 

Under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme, the Company received Government grant for the 
purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment and stores and spare parts. As per the EPCG scheme 
the Company has an obligation to export up to 618 times of grant amount. As and when the Company fulfils the 
export obligation, proportionate grant is released to the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer Note no. 37). 

Government grant relatlng to EPCG Scheme 
Ogening Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme 
Current liability o.oo 79.49 
Non-Current liability 89.49 3.45 
Sub-total (a) 89.49 82.94 

Released to the statement of Profrt and Loss 97.04 82.94 
Sub-total (b) 97.04 82.94 

Received during the year (c) 16.81 89.49 

Closing Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme (a-b+c) 9.27 89.49 

Bifurcation of closing Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme 
Current liability o.oo 0.00 
Non-Current liability 9.27 89.49 
Total 9.27 89.49 

other Government grant. - non-currant 0.16 0.18 

Total deferred revenue - Government grant 9.43 89.67 

71 



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Particulars 

21. Borrowings (current)• 
Secured ·at amortised cost 
Loans repayable on demand from bank 
Working capital borrowings 
Current maturities of long-tenn borrowings 
Current maturities of long-tenn borrowings (refer Note no. 18) 
Total 

Note: 
Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others: 

~
-r-
t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

tinlakhs 
As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 

0.00 96.15 

108.62 76.83 
108.62 172.98 

Loans repayable on demand from banks (working capital borrowings) having sanctioned amount of' 300.00 
Lakhs (previous year' 200.00 Lakhs) is secured by: 
A. Primarv Security: 
(i) Hypothecation of stock (raw materials, work in progress, finished goods) and book debts of the Company. 

(ii) Hypothecation of other chargeable current assets (both present and future) of the Company. 

B. Collateral Security: 
(i) First charge ranking pari passu with Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) by way of equitable 
mortgage of factory land measuring 34 kanals and 14 marlas and building constructed thereon measuring 
20993.50 sq. yards located at 9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana owned by the 
Company. 

Loans repayable on demand from banks (working capital borrowings) are further covered by irrevocable and 
unconditional personal guarantee of the directors of the Company namely Sh. Anurag Gupta, Smt. Sapna Kansai 
and Sh. Nikhil Goel. 

• Refer Note no. 39 

22. Trade payables* 
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(refer note no. 36) 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 
Total 

• Refer Note no. 39 
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90.31 136.99 

105.99 214.96 

196.30 351.95 



Trade Payabl• ageing schedule: 

Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2023 
(A) Undisputed Trade payabl• 
(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(ii) Creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
ente1Jrises 
(B) Disputed Trade payables 
(I) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(II) Creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Total 

...... 
(,.) I Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2022 
(A) Undisputed Trade payabl• 
(i) Micro enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(ii) Creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
(B) Disputed Trade payables 
(i) Micro enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(ii) Creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Total 

I Unbilled I Not due I Outstanding for following periods from due date 
of ment 
Less than 1 -2 More than 
1 ears 3 rs 

0.00 90.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
o.oo 99.57 6.42 o.oo o.oo o.oo 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 189.88 6.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 

I Unbilled I Not due I outstanding for following periods from due datel 

I I Im~ L8: thanl1 -2 
1 r ~ears l~!ars IMore than 

3~rs 

0.00 136.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 209.39 5.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 

o.oo o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 
o.oo o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 

0.00 346.38 5.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 

tlnlakhe 
Total 

90.31 
105.99 

0.00 
0.00 

196.30 

'inlakhs 
Total 

136.99 
214.96 

0.00 
0.00 

351.95 
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Particulars 

23. Other flnanclal llabllltles (current)• 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Creditors towards property, plant and equipment: 
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(refer note no. 36) 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 
Employees liabilities 
Accrued expenses 
Total 

* Refer Note no. 39 

24. Other current llabllltlea 
Advances from customers 
Statutory remittances 
Deferred revenue - Government grant 
Other liabilities 
Total 

Note: 
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'lnlakhs 
Asat As at 

31st March. 2023 31st March. 2022 

1.45 

0.00 

0.00 

20.12 
43.46 
85.03 

15.53 
6.53 
0.01 
0.04 

22.11 

0.86 

6.74 

2.66 

18.83 
40.95 
70.04 

49.30 
9.52 
0.03 
0.17 

59.02 

(a) Advances from customers is recognised when payment is received before the related performance is 
satisfied. 
(b) Statutory remittances includes contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance corporation, tax 
deducted at source, tax collected at source, goods and services tax etc. 

25. Provisions (currant) 
Provision for employee benefits - gratuity (refer note no. 40) 
Total 

74 

3.39 13.34 
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~inlakhs 
Partlculars Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
28. Revenue From operations 

Sale of products 
Manufactured goods 
Total sale of products (a) 

other operating revenues 
Sale of waste 
Sale of scrap 
Govemment grants relating to EPCG Scheme (refer Note No. 20) 
Export benefits (see note below) 
Total other operating revenues (b) 

Total Revenue From operations (a) + (b) 

Note: 

4513.87 
4513.87 

24.61 
3.04 

97.04 
30.59 

155.28 

4889.15 

3448.01 
3448.01 

22.22 
0.67 

82.94 
39.27 

145.10 

3593.11 

1. Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with customers' outlines a single comprehensive control based model for 
revenue recognition. The Company had not applied any significant judgements in applying the revenue 
recognition criteria. The disclosure requirements as per Ind AS 115 given below:-

Analysis of the Company's revenue from its products and sale of waste/ scrap: 

Sale of products 
Sale of manufactured goods 
other operating revenues 
Sale of waste 
Sale of scrap 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 

Geographic lnfonnatlon 
India 
Outside India 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 

4513.87 

24.61 
3.04 

4541.52 

3855.42 
686.10 

4541.52 

3448.01 

22.22 
0.67 

3470.90 

2716.76 
754.14 

3470.90 

The followlng Is analysls on the Companies revenue disaggregates on the basis of timing of revenue 
recognition: 
Goods transferred at a point in time 
Over the period 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 

Major Product lines for manufactured goods 
Cotton yam blended 

4541.52 
o.oo 

4541.52 

4513.87 
4513.87 

2. Export benefits are in the nature of Government grants covering following benefits: 
Duty drawback benefits 9.26 
RoDTEP benefits 21.33 

3470.90 
0.00 

3470.90 

3448.01 
3448.01 

9.72 
29.55 

The new scheme for Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RoDTEP) was introduced by Ministry 
of Commerce and Industry vide notification dated 17th August, 2021 for eligible exported goods. Accordingly, the 
Company has recognised in Revenue from operations the benefit of RoDTEP off 6.47 Lakhs during the year 
ended 31st March, 2022 pertaining to eligible export sales for the period from 1st January, 2021 to 31st March, 
2021. 
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Particulars 

27. Other Income 
Interest income 
- on bank deposits (at amortised cost) 
- on other financial assets (at amortised cost) 
Other non~peratlng Income (net of expenses dlrecOy attrlbutable 
to such Income) 
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 
Govemment grant relating to property, plant and equipment 
Provision for interest written back (see note below) 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Miscellaneous income 
Total 

Note: 
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'lnlakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March. 2023 31st March. 2022 

0.66 
1.03 

7.59 
0.03 
1.16 
0.21 
0.19 

10.87 

5.05 
1.71 

11.87 
0.04 

73.65 
0.00 
0.00 

92.32 

Provision towards interest on expected unfulfillment of export obligation amounting to' 1.16 lakhs (previous year 
ended 31st March, 2022- t 73.65 lakhs) has been written back. 
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Particulars 

28. Cost of materlals consumed 
Cost of raw materials consumed 
Opening stock of raw materials 
Add: Purchases of raw materials 

Less: 
Closing stock of raw materials 
Cost of materials consumed ·Total (refer note below) 

Note: 
Cost of materials consumed comprises: 
Textile waste 
Polyester staple fiber 
Cotton waste 
others 
Total 

29. Changes In Inventories of finished goods and work-In-progress 
Closing inventories 
Finished goods 
Saleable waste 
Work-in-progress 

Opening Inventories 
Finished goods 
Saleable waste 
Work-in-progress 

{:} Increase/ decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-
Progress 
Finished goods 
Saleable waste 
Work-In-progress 
Changes In Inventories of finished goods and work-In-progress • 
total 

77 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

467.26 
2480.60 
2947.86 

461.55 
2486.31 

970.87 
775.71 
739.73 

o.oo 
2486.31 

350.96 
3.68 

164.41 
519.05 

266.71 
2.22 

281.78 
550.71 

-84.25 
-1.46 

117.37 
31.66 
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tinlakhs 
Year ended 

31•t March, 2022 

412.01 
2004.09 
2416.10 

467.26 
1948.84 

942.35 
565.42 
436.61 

4.46 
1948.84 

266.71 
2.22 

281.78 
550.71 

149.26 
6.90 

168.61 
324.77 

-117.45 
4.68 

-113.17 
-225.94 
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Particulars 

30. Empl~ benefits expense 
Salaries, wages, bonus, etc. 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no. 40) 
(Net of Govemment grant amounting to'° nil lakhs (previous reporting 
year t 0.10 lakhs) 
Gratuity expenses (refer note no. 40) 
Staff welfare expenses 
Total 

31. Finance costs 
Interest expense (see note below) 
Interest paid on shortfall in payment of advance income tax 
Other borrowing costs 
Total 

Note: 

~
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tinlakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 

281.33 
13.91 

5.90 
0.22 

301.36 

30.23 
0.00 
0.76 

30.99 

274.61 
12.88 

6.29 
0.26 

294.04 

8.87 
0.96 
0.89 

10.72 

Interest expense is net of interest subsidy oft nil lakhs (previous reporting year - t 0.09 lakhs) received under 
Revised Restructured Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (RTUFS) of the Government of India. 

32. Depreciation expense 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note no. 3) 
Total 
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249.18 59.55 
249.18 59.55 
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33. 

tinlakhs 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31•t March, 2022 
other expenses 
Consumption of stores and spares 203.29 129.88 
Packing material consumed 39.02 40.02 
Diesel consumed 184.12 198.63 
Power expenses 461.63 380.63 
Contract labour charges 58.19 43.28 
Repair and maintenance 
-Machinery 12.54 13.80 
-Buildings 3.82 8.05 

Insurance charges 9.47 8.24 
Fees and subscription 5.32 8.43 
Auditor's remuneration 
- Auditfees 2.50 1.75 
- Tax audit fees 0.40 0.25 
- Limited reviews and certification fees 0.60 0.40 

Legal and professional charges 11.15 5.80 
Fair value loss on financial instruments et FVTPL 0.00 0.06 
Freight and cartage outward 121.44 164.81 
Clearing and forwarding charges (export) 12.50 17.66 
Commission on sale 6.31 7.27 
Miscellaneous expenses (refer note below) 24.61 21.35 
Total 1156.91 1050.31 

Note: 
Miscellaneous expenses does not include any item of expenditure with a value of more than 1 % of the revenue 
from operations. 
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34. Tax Expense: 

A. Movement In defenad tax balanc:e11: t In lakha 
Partlcul818 Recognised Asat 

inOCI 31st March, 2023 
DeferTed tax aeet9 
Properly, plant and equipment 46.87 16.93 0.00 63.80 
Government grants 0.65 -0.30 0.00 0.35 
Total defenecl tax assets (a) 47.52 16.13 0.00 14.15 

Defenad tax llabllltlea (b) 0.00 0.00 0.00 o_oo 

Defenecl tax asset9 (net) (a-b) 47.52 16.63 0.00 64.15 

t In lakha 
Partlculms Recognised Asat 

inOCI 31st March, 2022 
Det'enecl tax .... 19 
Properly, plant and equipment 59.98 -13.11 0.00 46.87 
Government grants 35.93 -35.28 0.00 0.65 
Total defenecl tax assets (a) 95.91 -48.39 0.00 47.52 

Defenad 1ax llabllltlea 
Deferred expenditure 0.01 -0.01 0.00 0.00 
Derivative financial instruments carried at FVTPL 0.01 -0.01 0.00 0.00 
Total defened tax llabllltles (b) 0.02 -0.02 o.oo 0-00 

DefemKI tax llSHts (net) (a·b) 95.89 -48.37 0.00 47.52 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation laws. 

B. Tax expense recognised in 1he Statement of Profit and Loss: 
Particulars 

Current 1ax expense 
Current tax 

Adjustment of tax relating to eertier periods 

Defenad 1ax expense 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Total 1ax expenee 

'In lakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

109.11 86.51 
109.11 81.51 

0.00 0.24 
0.00 0.24 

-18.63 48.37 
-16.63 48.37 

92.48 135.12 

c. Amount9 recoanlHd In Other Comnnhenslw lncomel (-) Exnense: 'in lakhs 
Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2023 Year ended 31st March, 2022 

Before Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax 
tax Expense(·)/ Expense(·)/ Income 

Income 
Remeasurement& of the 2.51 -0.63 1.88 -6.94 1.75 -5.19 
defined benefit plans 

2.51 -0.63 1.88 -6.94 1.75 -5.19 
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D. Reconciliation of effective tax rate: 
Partlculara 

Profit before tax 
Company's Indian domestic tax 
Tax usin1 the Com1tany's Indian domestic tax rate 

Tax effect of: 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 
Property, plant and equipment 
Government grants 
Others 
Tax expenses report8d in the statement of Profit and Loss 
Effective tax rate 

81 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

423.61 
25.1680% 

106.61 

0.00 
9.36 

-24.43 
0.94 

92.48 
21.8310% 
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t lnlakhs 
Year ended 

31st March, 2022 
547.91 

25.1680% 
137.90 

0.24 
-0.21 
-3.49 
0.68 

135.12 
24.6610% 
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~inlakhs 
Partlculars Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
35. Earning• per equity •hare (EPS) 

The calculation of Eamings Per Share (EPS) as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss has been made in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 33 on "Eamings Per Share". 

A statement on calculation of EPS is as under: 
Profit for the year 
Total (a) 

Weighted average number of equity shares off 10/- each 
Total (b) 

Basic EPS (f) (alb) 
Diluted EPS (f) (alb) 

Note: 
There are no potential equity shares. 

331.13 412.79 
331.13 412.79 

3735000 3735000 
3735000 3735000 

8.87 11.05 
8.87 11.05 

36. Dlaclosure required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprtsea Development Act, 2006 
(MSMEDAct) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

~inlakhs 
Partlculars Asat As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
(i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 90.31 143.73 
each accounting year 
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 0.00 0.00 
each accounting year 
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of o.oo 0.00 
the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; 
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making o.oo 0.00 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act; 
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each o.oo 0.00 
accounting year; and 
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 0.00 0.00 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act. 

90.31 143.73 

The above infonnation as required under MSMED Act has been detennined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of the infonnation available with the Company. 
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Partlculars Asat 
31st March, 2023 

37. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):­
(a) Contingent Llabllltles: 
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: 
- Value Added Tax/ Central Sales Tax matters in dispute/under appeal 3.98 

(ii) Outstanding counter guarantees issued to Punjab National Bank in 
respect of the guarantees issued by the said bank in favour of various 
government authorities 

(iii) The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') has been notified in the 
Official Gazette on 29th September, 2020. The effective date from which 
the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to 
be framed. Impact if any, of the change will be assessed and accounted 
in the period in which said Code becomes effective and the rules framed 
thereunder are published. 
Total 

(b) Commitments: 
(i) Capital commitmenta 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for (net of advances) 
Iii) Other commitments 
Export obligation outstanding at year end in respect of import of capital 
goods and spare parts under the Export promotion capital goods 
scheme, of the Government of India, at concessional rates of duty on an 
undertaking to fulfil quantified exports in the future years. 
Total 

22.20 

Amount not 
determinable 

26.18 

0.00 

58.20 

58.20 

~
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~inlakhs 
As at 

31st March, 2022 

3.98 

31.71 

Amount not 
determinable 

35.69 

0.00 

553.35 

553.35 

38. No amount of dividend has been proposed to be distributed to the equity shareholders for the year. 
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39. Flnanclal Instruments • Fair values and Risk mana99ment 

~
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The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which 
income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, and financial liability are disclosed in 
Notes no. 2(p) and 2(q) to the financial statements. 

A. Accounting classifications and fair values 
The following tables shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 
levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

'lnlakhs 
As at 31st March, 2023 Carrying Value Fair Value Hierarchy 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Level 1 Level2 Level3 
Cost 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables (refer Note no. 9) 0.00 0.00 416.51 0.00 416.51 0.00 
Cash and cash equlvalents (refer 0.00 0.00 26.42 0.00 26.42 0.00 
Note no.10) 
other financial assets (refer Note 0.00 0.00 65.18 0.00 65.18 0.00 
no. Sand 12) 

0.00 0.00 508.11 0.00 508.11 0.00 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings (refer Note no. 18 and 0.00 0.00 294.37 0.00 294.37 0.00 
21) 
Trade payables (refer Note no. 22) o.oo 0.00 196.30 o.oo 196.30 0.00 
other financial liabilities (refer Note o.oo 0.00 66.44 o.oo 66.44 0.00 
no 19and23) 

0.00 0.00 557.11 0.00 557.11 0.00 

'lnlakhs 
As at 31st March, 2022 Carrying Value Fair Value Hierarchv 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Level 1 Level2 Level3 
Cost 

Flnanclal assets 
Trade receivables (refer Note no. 9) 0.00 0.00 240.29 0.00 240.29 0.00 
Cash and cash equivalents (refer o.oo 0.00 102.58 o.oo 102.58 0.00 
Note no.10) 
Other financial assets (refer Note 0.00 0.00 93.78 0.00 93.78 0.00 
no.Sand 12) 

0.00 0.00 436.65 0.00 436.65 0.00 
Flnanclal llabllltles 
Borrowings (refer Note no. 18 and o.oo 0.00 463.94 o.oo 463.94 0.00 
21) 
Trade payables (refer Note no. 22) 0.00 0.00 351.95 0.00 351.95 0.00 
Other financial liabilities (refer Note 0.00 0.00 72.61 0.00 72.61 0.00 
no 19and23) 

0.00 0.00 888.50 0.00 888.50 0.00 

Notes: 
1. The amortised cost of all financial assets and liablities approximate to the fair values on the respective reporting dates. 
2. There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st 
March, 2022. 
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B. Financial risk mana1amant 
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 

aedit risk 
litiuidity risk 
market risk 

i. Risk mana9ement framework 

~
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t! .. . ~ : ,,. 
._. ~ 

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. The Board of Directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management 
controls risks through the mechanism of property defined risk management framework. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed by the board regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The 
Company, through its policies and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in 
which all employees understand their roles and responsibilities. 

ii. Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. 

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The Company monitor credit 
risk very closely both in domestic and export market. The Management impact analysis shows credit risk and impact 
assessment as low. 

Trade receivables 
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the 
default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. 

The Company Management has establlshect a credit pollcy under which each new customer Is analysed lndlvldually for 
creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The 
Company's review includes market check, industry feedback, past financials and external ratings, if they are available, 
and in some cases bank references. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed monthly basis. Any 
sales exceeding those limits require approval from the Company's management. 

Most of the Company's customers have been transacting wHh the Company from past few years, and most of these 
customers' balances are not credit-impaired at the reporting date except in few cases reported. Identifying 
concentrations of credit risk requires judgement in the light of specific circumstances. The Company monitors ageing 
of its trade receivables regularty and based on the same takes corrective action. Trade receivables having ageing 
more than 180 days is monitored individually and loss allowance is created based on such assessment. 

The carrying amount (net of loss allowances) of trade receivables is 31st March, 2023 '416.51 Lakhs and 31st March, 
2022 f 240.29 Lakhs. 

A summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables based on the ageing is as follows: 

Ageing of receivable 

Less than 180 days 
More than 180 days 

As at 31st March, 2023 
Gross Expected 

Carrying Credit loss 
amount 

416.51 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

'inlakhs 
As at 31st March, 2022 

Gross Carrying Expected Credit 
amount loss 

240.29 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

During the year, the Company has made no write~ffs of trade receivables. 
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Reconclllatlon of loss allowance provision ·Trade recelvables 

Particulars 

019enln1 Balance 
Chan1e in loss 
Closin9 balance 

Asat 
31st March. 2023 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

~
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tlnlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

The followlng table gives detalls In respect of revenues generated from top customer and top 5 customers: 

Particulars 

Revenue from top customer from whom the Company receives 
10% or more of its revenues 
% of Revenue from top customer from whom the Company 
receives 10% or more of its revenues 
Revenue from top 5 customers 
% of total sales of products from top 5 customers 

iii. Li'l!Uidity risk 

Asat 
31st March. 2023 

1811.27 

40.13 

2654.69 
58.81 

tlnlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 
1515.62 

43.96 

2127.69 
61.71 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to manage liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when liabilities are fallen due, 
under both nonnal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's 
reputation. 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
fund through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market 
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the under1ying businesses, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by 
maintaining availability under committed credit line. 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing 
facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected future cash flows in accordance with practice and 
limits set by the Company. 

(a) Flnancln1 
The Company have access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities as at reporting date: 

Particulars 

Floatln1 rate 
Working capital borrowings 
Tenn loan 

Asat 
31st March. 2023 

300.00 
91.25 

tlnlakha 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 

103.85 
91.25 

The credit limit facilities may be drawn at any time and may be tenninated by the bank without notice 
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(b) The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The 
amounts are 1ross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest itaymants: 

As at 31st March, 
2023 
Flnanclal llabllltles 
Non current Borrowings 
- Tenn loans from banks and financial 

institution [including interest and current 
maturities of long-term borrowings] 
(Refer Note no. 18, 21and23) 
Borrowings [current] (Refer Note no. 21) 

Trade payables (Refer note no. 22) 
other Financial liabilities (Refer note no. 
23and19) 
Total 

As at 31st March, 
2022 
Flnanclal llabllltles 
Non current Borrowings 
- Tenn loans from banks and financial 

institution [including interest and current 
maturities of long-term borrowings] 
(Refer note no. 18, 21 and 23) 
Borrowings [current] (Refer note no. 21) 
Trade payables (Refer note no. 22) 
other Financial liabilities (Refer note no. 
23and19) 
Total 

On Less than 
Demand 1 year 

0.00 110.07 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 196.30 
0.00 63.58 

0.00 369.95 

On Less than 
Demand 1 year 

o.oo 77.69 

0.00 96.15 
0.00 351.95 
o.oo 69.18 

0.00 594.97 

1-5 Year More than 
Syears 

185.75 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
1.41 0.00 

187.16 0.00 

1-5 Year More than 
5years 

290.96 o.oo 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
2.57 o.oo 

293.53 0.00 

l'inlakhs 
Total 

295.82 

0.00 

196.30 
64.99 

557.11 

l'lnlakhs 
Total 

368.65 

96.15 
351.95 

71.75 

888.50 

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the 
reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change. 

iv. Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices -
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
retum. 
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Currency risk 
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The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales 
and purchases are denominated. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are USO, GBP 
and Euro. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than 
one year from the reporting date. 

Ex11osure to 
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional amounts) as 
reported to the management is as follows: 

As at 31st March, 
2023 

Currency Amount in foreign Exchange Unhedged amount 
('In Lakhs) currency rate ( In 

absolute') 
Trade 119yable EUR 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Trade itayable USO 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Trade receivable EUR 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Trade receivable USO o.oo o.oo ____ ...... 0 ....... 0 ...... 0 
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities 0.00 

As at 31st March, 
2022 

Currency Amount in foreign 
currency 

Exchange Unhedged amount 
rate (In ( t' In Lakhs) 

absolute') 
Trade 119yable EUR O 0.00 0.00 
Trade itayable USO 0 0.00 0.00 
Trade receivable EUR 0 0.00 0.00 
Trade receivable USO O 0.00 0.00 

---~~~~~---......... ---~~ .......... ---~~~~ 
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities 0.00 

Sensitivity analysls 
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR, EUR, USO and GBP against all other currencies at year 
end would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant 
and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. 

EUR 
USO 

Currency 

Interest rate risk 

Movement in 
foreign Currency 

5% movement 
5% movement 

As at 
31st March. 2023 

Increase I Decrease in profit 
in orofit 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

As at 
31st March. 2022 

Increase in I Decrease in profit 
orofit 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in prevailing market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk due to changes in interest rates 
relates primarily to the Company's short-term and long-term borrowings with floating interest rates. 

The Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. 

Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk: 

Particulars 

Variable rate borrowings 
Total Borrowln1s 
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Asat 
31st March, 2023 

294.37 
294.37 

'inlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 
463.94 
463.94 
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Sensitivity 
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates. 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2023 

Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points 
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points 
Note: If the rate is decreased by 1 % profit will increase by an equal amount. 

-2.94 
2.94 
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'inlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 
-4.64 
4.64 

- Interest rate sensltMty has been calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been 
outstanding for the entire reporting year. 

C. Capital Management 
The Company manages its capital to ensure the Company's abaility to continue as going concern and to create value 
for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the Company. The Company manages 
capital risk in order to maximize shareholders' profit by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure through monitoring 
of financial ratios, such as net debt-to-equity ratio. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from 
operations, long term and short term bank borrowings. Net debt includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and 
cash equivalents and other bank balances. 

The Company's net debt-to-equity ratio was as follows: 

The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt-to-equity ratio (Gearing ratio) of the Company: 

Partlculars 

Debt (Refer Note no. 18 and 21) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note no. 10) 
Net debt 

Total equity (Refer Note no. 16 and 17) 
Net debt-to-equity ratio 
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Asat 
31st March, 2023 

294.37 
26.42 

267.95 

2024.00 
0.13 

'inlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 
463.94 
102.58 
361.36 

1690.99 
0.21 
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40. Employee benefits 

A. Defined Contribution Plans 
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During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profrt and Loss 
for defined contribution plans: 

Particulars 

Contribution to Provident fund 
(Net of Government grant amounting to ' Nil Lakhs (previous 
reporting year' 0.10 Lakhs) 
Contribution to Employee state insurance 
Contribution to other funds (Labour welfare fund) 
Total 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

10.80 

2.70 
0.41 

13.91 

'inlakhs 
Year ended 

31st March, 2022 
9.88 

2.62 
0.38 

12.88 

The expenses incurred on account of the above defined contribution plans have been included in note 
no. 30 "Employee benefits expense" under the head •contribution to provident and other funds". 

B. Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity 
The Company provides to the eligible employees defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity. The 
gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in 
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days' salary payable for 
each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The 
measurement date used for determining retirement benefits for gratuity is 31st March. 

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, 
longevity risk and salary risk. 

Investment risk: 
The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular 
investment. 

Interest rate risk: 
The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an 
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value 
of the liability. 

Longevity risk: 
The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 
mortality of plan participants both during and after employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the 
plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

Salary risk: 
The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with reference to the future salaries of 
participants under the plan. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher 
liabilities. 
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The following table summarizes the components of net defined benefit expense towards gratuity 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and the funded status 
and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

I Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation 

Partlculars 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as et year 
beginning 
Interest cost 
Current service cost 
Benefits paid 
Remeasurements (gains')/ losses: 
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions 
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in experience 
adjustments 
Present value of defined benefit obllgatlon as at year 
end 

II Changes in the fair value of the plan assets 

Particulars 

Fair value of plan assets as at year beginning 
Expected return on plan assets 
Employer's Contribution 
Benefits paid 
Remeasurements gains/ (losses): 
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate 

Fair value of plan assets as at year end 

Ill Amounts Recognised In the Balance Sheet 

Partlculars 

Present value of defined benefit obligation et the year end 
Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the year end 
Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
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'inlakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
44.15 30.11 

2.54 
5.67 

-10.97 

-1.73 

-1.02 

38.64 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

Asat 

30.81 
2.31 

13.34 
-10.97 

-0.24 

35.25 

31st March, 2023 
38.64 
35.25 

3.39 

1.73 
5.92 

-0.87 

-0.33 

7.59 

44.15 

tinlakhs 
Year ended 

31st March, 2022 
23.67 

1.36 
6.32 

-0.87 

0.33 

30.81 

'lnlakhs 
Asat 

31st March, 2022 
44.15 
30.81 
13.34 
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IV Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

Particulars 

Interest Cost 
Current service cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Expenses recognised In the statement of Profit and 
Loss 
Income recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 
Remeasurements gains/(losses) 
Net Income/ (-) Expense Recognised in the Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

2.54 
5.67 

-2.31 
5.90 

2.51 
2.51 

tinlakhs 
Year ended 

31st March, 2022 
1.73 
5.92 

-1.36 
6.29 

-6.94 
-6.94 

V The prlnclpal assumptions used In determining gratuity obllgatlons for the Company's plans 
are shown below: 
Significant Actuarial .Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Salary increase 
Mortality Rate 
Withdrawal Rate 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 
7.50% per annum 
7.00% per annum 

IALM 2012-14 

Asat 
31st March, 2022 
5. 75% per annum 
7.00% per annum 

IALM 2012-14 
30.00% per annum 30.00% per annum 

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment 
market. 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published 
statistics by the Actuary. 

The discount rate is based on the government securities yield. The Company assesses these 
assumptions with its projected long-tenn plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. 

VI Plan asset information:-
tinlakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Assets under scheme of insurance funded with Life 35.25 30.81 
Insurance Corporation of India 
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VII Sensitivity Analysis 
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Significant actuarial assumptions for the detennination of the defined benefit obligation are discount 
rate and expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. The 
sensitivity analysis is presented below may not be representative of the actual change in the defined 
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one 
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given 
below: 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation (base) 
Discount Rate 
1.00% Increase 
1.00% decrease 
Salary Growth Rate 
1.00% Increase 
1.00% decrease 
Withdrawal Rate 
1.00% Increase 
1.00% decrease 

VIII Maturity analysis 

Particulars 

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation: 

Weighted Average duration of the defined benefit 

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 
Between 2 and 5 years 
Between 5 and 1 O years 

tinlakhs 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
38.64 44.15 

-1.07 -1.14 
1.13 1.20 

1.12 1.17 
-1.08 -1.14 

-0.09 -0.14 
0.09 0.14 

tinlakhs 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

11 years 10 years 

10.86 17.36 
18.37 14.08 
9.41 12.71 

IX Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period 
tlnlakhs 

Partlculars Asat Asat 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the 7 .93 8.17 
next year 
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41. Related Party Dlsclosures 
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As per Ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures", the Company's related parties and transactions with 
them in the ordinary course of business are disclosed below: 

a. Names of the related parties and relatlonshlp between the parties: 

Nature of relationship 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

Name of the related party 
Mr. Anurag Gupta, Managing Director 
Mrs. Sapna Kansai, Whole-time Director 
Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta, Chairman and Non-Executive 
Independent Director 
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg, Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
Mr. Sandeep Suri, Non-Executive Independent Director 
Mr. Nikhil Goel, Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Naveen Kansai, Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Sharad Goel, Chief Financial Officer 
Mrs. Nikita Singla, Company Secretary 

b. Transactions with the above related parties during the year were: 
tlnlakhs 

Nature of transactions Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Key managerial Key managerial 
personnel (KMP) personnel {KMP) 

(i) Remuneration 
Mr. Anuraa Guota 27.00 27.00 
Mrs. Saona Kansai 27.00 27.00 
Mr. Naveen Kansai 27.00 27.00 
Mr. Sharad Goel 18.00 18.00 
Mrs. Nikita Sinala 1.82 1.80 
Total 100.82 100.80 

(ii) Director sittina fees 
Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Guota 0.65 0.80 
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Gam 0.63 0.78 
Mr. Sandeeo Suri 0.50 0.60 
Total 1.78 2.18 
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c. Balance as at year end 

Nature of transactions Asat 
31st March, 2023 

Key managerial 
oersonnel CKMPl 

Remuneration Davable 
Mr. Anurag Gupta 1.77 
Mrs. Saona Kansai 1.77 
Mr. Naveen Kansai 1.77 
Mr. Sharad Goel 1.23 
Mrs. Nikita Sinala 0.15 
Total 6.69 

~
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tinlakhs 
Asat 

31st March. 2022 
Key managerial 
oersonnel CKMPl 

1.77 
1.77 
1.77 
1.25 
0.14 
6.70 

d. The remuneration of key managerlal personnel during the period was as follows: 
tinlakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Short-term employee benefits (salaries, bonus and 100.82 100.80 
other allowances)* 
Post-Retirement Benefits 0.00 0.00 
Share-Based Pavments 0.00 0.00 
other Lona-term Benefits 0.00 0.00 
Total comoansatlon 100.82 100.80 

Notes: 
• Expenses towards gratuity provisions are determined actuarially on an overall Company basis at the 
end of each year and, accordingly, have not been considered in the above information. 

Terms and conditions of transactions with Related Parties: 
The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms 
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. The above transactions are as per the 
approval of the Audit Committee. 
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a. Ratio analysl• and lta elements: 
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022: 

Ratio Numerator Denominator Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Current Ratio Qn Current Assel8 Current Liabilities 4.56 2.53 
Umes) 

Debt - Equity Ratio (In Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.15 0.27 
times) 

Debt Service Earning for debt service .. Net Profit Debt $eNiC8 .. Interest (+) 5.70 8.51 
Coverage Ratio (In after taxea• (+) Non-cash oparaUng Principal repayments 
times) expenses like depreciation (+) Interest 

(+)/(-)other adJustmenta Ilka net gain/ 
loss on disposal of pioperty, plant and 
equipment etc. 

Return on Equity Net profits after taxes• Average Shareholder's Equity 17.83% 27.76% 
(ROE) Qn %) 

Inventory Turnover Revenue from Operations (excludlng Average Inventory 4.27 3.72 
Ratio (in limes) Government grant relating ID EPCG 

scheme and Emort benefits} 
Trade racelvablea Revenue from Operations (excludlng Average Accounts Recelvable 13.83 12.81 
turnover ratio Qn Government grant relating to EPCG 
Umeal scheme and Emort benefits} 
Trade payables Net Credit Purchases (comprise ol Average Trade Payables 10.65 9.96 
turnover ratio Qn purchases of raw materials ( +) store 
Umeal and RDA1'88 etc.,l+l Daclclna materlaD 
Net capital turnover Revenue from Operations (axcludlng Average working capltal, where 3.73 3.57 
ratio (in times) Government grant relating to EPCG working capital (=) Total current 

scheme and E>eport benefits) assets less Total current llabllllles 

Net profit ratio Qn %) Net profits after taxes• Revenue from Operations 7.29% 11.89% 
(axcludlng Government grant 
relating to EPCG scheme and 
&ntirt benetltal 

Retum on capital Eaming before interest and taxes capital employed (=) Tangible 0.20 0.26 
employed (ROCE) (in net worth (+) Total Debt (+).'(-) 
%) Deferred Tax Liabilitv/ Aa8et 
Retum on investment Income generated from invested funds Average invested funds Not Applicable Not Applicable 
lROlllin %) 

• "Net Prof rt after tax" means raported amount of "Profit I (loss) for the period" and it does not include items of other comprehensive income. 

%of 
variance 

80.24% 

-44.44% 

-33.02% 

-35.77% 

14.78% 

7.96% 

6.93% 

4A8% 

-38.69% 

-23A6% 

Reason for variance in excess 01 
25" 
Current l8tio haa improved due to 
lncr988e In current assets and 
reduction in current liabilities during the 
current year as compared to the 
previous "8.ar. 
Total Debt has reduced due ID 
repayment of borrowings during the 
current year, resulUng In Improvement 
of debt - eauitv ratio. 
Principal repayments of non - culT8nt 
bonowlngs has lncreeaed during the 
culT8nt year as compared to the 
previous year, resulting In decrease In 
debt service coV818ge ratio. 

Net profits after taxes has reduced 
during the current year, resulting in 
decrease In return on ADUltv. 

Net profits after taxes has reduoed 
during the current year, resultlng In 
decrease in net profit ratio. 
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43. Corporate Social Responsibility: 

Particulars 

a) Amount required to be spent by the Company 
during the year 
b) Amount of expenditure incurred 
c) Shortfall at the end of the year** 
d) Total of previous years shortfall 
Total shortfall at year end 

e) Details of related party transactions 

-shortfall In CSR Spent: 

'inlakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

6.87 

0.00 
6.87 
0.00 
6.87 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Amount remaining unspent pertains to "other than ongoing projects" which shall be 
transfen-ed to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 before the 
expiry of time limit as permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 
of the Act i.e. six months of the expiry of the financial year. 
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44. .Additional Regulatory Information as applicable to the Company: 

~
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(a) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, 
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly 
with any other person. 

(b) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder. 

(c) The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets; and the 
quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement 
with the books of account of the Company and there are no material discrepancies. 

(d) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender. 

(e) The Company has not used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions at the balance 
sheet date other than the specific purpose for which it was taken. 

(f) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

(g) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the 
Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

(h) The Company is not a subsidiary or holding company of any other company. 

(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (•Intermediaries•) with the undellltanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

0) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Funding Party") with the unde!lltanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 1he 
Company shall: 
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (•Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 1he Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(k) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of 1he Income Tax Act, 1961 ). 

(1) The Company has not 1raded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial 
year. 
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45. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 were audited by 
Romesh K. Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered accountants, the predecessor auditor. 

46. Previous reporting year figures in the financial statements, including the notes thereto, have been 
reclassified wherever required to confirm to the current reporting year presentation/ classification. 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Regis1ration No. 010505N 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 30th May, 2023 

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) 
Partner 

Membership No. 088447 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(ANURAG GUPTA) 
Managing Director 

DIN-00192888 

(SHARAD GOEL) 
Chief Financial Officer 

(NIKHIL GOEL) 
Director 

DIN-01741446 

(NIKITA SINGLA) 
Company Secretary 

(NAVEEN KANSAL) 
Chief Executive Officer 
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